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. ' PROFILE

~_ FINANCIAL Highlights

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc., headquar- (In thousands, except per share data) 2001 2000
tered in Woodbridge, New Jersey, is Financial Performance
the holding company for First Savings Total revenue $ 138,040 $ 139,058
Bank. Established in 1901, First Savings Non-interest expense 25,934 24,678
rovides retail, mortgage, consumer and Net income 25,311 22,968
p ' ’ ' 848 _ Diluted earnings per share 0.82 0.68
small business banking services to approx- Return on average equity 11.09% 10.17%
imately 76,000 customers through 23 Return on average assets 1.25% 1.17%
branch offices located throughout Central Net interest margin 3.01% 2.99%
New Jersey. With $2.1 billion in assets, Year-End Balances
First Sentinel is the second largest publicly Total assets $2,138,919 $1,968,709
traded thrift institution headquartered in Loans, net 1,242,779 1,184,802
Investment securities 107,988 234,970
New Jersey.
Mortgage-backed securities 642,716 447,022
Deposits 1,315,264 1,219,336
Cover photo courtesy of Maid of Perth Antigues, Borrowings 545’ 814 505,955
Louis £ Booz, I, photographer Stockholders equity 230,127 222,163
Ratios
Leverage (Tier 1) capital 9.09% 9.36%
Risk-based (Tier 1) capital 17.48% 17.91%
Efficiency ratio 41.01% 40.41%
Stated book value per share $7.44 $6.78
Asset quality
Nonperforming assets/total assets 0.09% 0.13%
Allowance for losses/total loans 1.03% 1.03%




| -.] 1901-2001 A Century of Service

n 1901, seven local businessmen formed the “Modern Building
Iand Loan Association” to finance home purchases in the City of
Perth Amboy. The Association grew steadily over the subsequent
decades, but by the end of World War TI, it was evident that a

wider range of services would be needed to serve consumers in

1,575

the new post-war economy. Thus, in 1945, the Association con-
verted to the First Savings and Loan Association of Perth Amboy.
The new thrift, the first federally insured institution of its kind in
the City, accepted deposits up to $5,000.

As the suburbs outside Perth Amboy grew, First Savings
expanded, opening its first branch in Woodbridge in 1959 and

another in Edison in 1961. Through a combination of de novo
branching, branch purchases and the acquisition of Pulse Bancorp, ‘97
Inc. in 1998, the number of offices has grown to 23 with the open-
ing of a Somerset branch in the first quarter of 2002. The branch

network now serves five counties in Central New Jersey. From sav-
ings accounts and home mortgages, First
Savings has expanded its product line to
offer a comprehensive array of financial
products and services.

In 1992, First Savings formed a mutual
holding company and sold a minority of its
shares to the public in order to access the
capital markets. Following a secondary
offering in 1995, the Bank completed its
transition to a full stock company with the

formation of First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. as its publicly owned
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holding company in 1998. Since that time, the Company has IV B = -
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Letter to Our Shareholders

001 marked a milestone for First Sentinel, as our
Zsubsidiary, First Savings Bank, celebrated its 100th
year of operation. Sadly, 2001 was also a year in which
our country was beset by unspeakable tragedy, forever
affecting our way of life. The economy fell into reces-
sion despite the Federal Reserve’s unprecedented 11
reductions in the Fed Funds target rate. The stock mar-
ket suffered the consequences of both world events and
shattered consumer confidence with the S&P 500 falling
more than 13% over the year, following a 10% decline
in 2000, the first back-to-back decline since 1974.
Despite the flagging economy in 2001, however, our
earnings per share increased 20.1%, while net income
grew 10.2%. Our stock price rose by almost 9%, and
assuming the reinvestment of dividends, First Sentinel’s
total return for 2001 was 12%.

Loan originations outpaced repayments, contributing
to a 5% increase in the portfolio despite an all-time
high in refinancing levels. At year-end, 68% of our loan
portfolio was comprised of one- to four-family mort-
gage loans. Our concentration on one- to four-family
lending and familiarity with the New Jersey market area
shields us from much of the exposure affiliated with
riskier forms of lending.

Nonetheless, we are still pursuing moderate diversifi-
cation of the loan portfolio. Over the last several years,
we have gradually lessened our dependence on one- to
four-family loans, while growing commercial real
estate, multi-family and construction loans to 21% of
the portfolio by year-end. In pursuing this diversifica-
tion, however, we have not, and will not, sacrifice our

underwriting standards.




Our retail and business development staff increased
small business and commercial deposit account bal-
ances by 72% for the year. We also shifted money from
certificates and increased core deposit accounts to 50%
of total deposits at year-end. In the fourth quarter, we
introduced FSBOnline, our Internet banking service
with a bill payment feature, and enrolled more than
2,500 customers in the first three months.

The events of 2001 caused us to reflect on our history,
take stock of our role in a changing economy and
reevaluate our strategic objectives. We reaffirmed that we
are a strong, successful consumer- and small business-
oriented bank, offering quality products and services in a
highly efficient manner to a focused, Central New Jersey
market area. Our success throughout the years demon-
strates an ongoing demand for such a provider. As our
operations and methodologies continually adapt to a
changing economy, our underlying mission remains the
same: to enhance shareholder value by being the pre-
eminent choice for consumer and business banking in
our market area.

We thank our employees for their dedication to this
mission, and we thank you, our shareholders, for

your support.

Sincerely,

T R -
@J;@( - MpﬁM}v &@’ el kerin)
Philip T. Ruegger, Jr. John P. Mulkerin

Chairman of the Board  President and
Chief Executive Officer

We opened our 23rd branch in
Somerset County in February
2002. This is our first entry
into the county, which is
ranked highest in the state in
per capita income, and is the
first of five new branches we

plan to open over the next

three years.




EVOLVING to Meet the Needs ¢

Providing tailored financial services solutions for our customers

n 1997, as we contemplated our conversion to a full
i stock company and our long-term corporate objec-

) tives, we embarked on a transition from a traditional
Lo ng;gggtfl%l:lo thrift institution concentrating in one- to four-family
. mortgages to a community bank focusing on the Central
New Jersey market area. To accomplish this transition,

management has pursued the following objectives:

o Expand commercial real estate and small
business lending and banking services
° Maintain asset quality
° Build our retail franchise via acquisitions and
de novo growth

oy gléZ‘; Comm RE/Mult-fanily o Effectively manage interest rate risk

) O 9% Home Equity o Generate strong annual earnings per share growth
03 2% Other ° Maintain operating efficiencies through technology

' ) (J 68% Single Family o i
- o Serve the communities in our markets

Loans Receivable, Net $1.2 billion

Our balance sheet growth during this period as a
public company is as follows (dollars in millions):

ST December 31, 1997 2001 Increase
' Total Assets $1,575 $2,139 35.8%

Loans Receivable, net 716 1,243 73.6%
Deposits 1,227 1,315 7.2%
Stockholders’ Equity 145 230 58.6%

Commercial and Small Business Lending
and Banking Services
The process of becoming more bank-like
began with a shift in focus from being pri-
marily a residential mortgage lender
with a corresponding concentration of
retail certificate deposits to a full-serv-
ice community bank. We hired com-
mercial lenders and retail business
development officers with strong




ur Market

backgrounds in credit quality. Their successful perform-
ance was aided by the money center and regional
banks’ disenfranchisement of customers in the wake of
considerable market consolidation.

Although we experienced the largest wave of loan
refinancings in our history in late 2001, we succeeded in
diversifying and building the loan portfolio. The per-
centage of single-family first mortgage loans decreased
from 75.4% at December 31, 1997, to 68.4% at the end
of 2001. Conversely, non-residential, multi-family and
construction lending increased to 20.9% at December 31,
2001, from 16.1% at the end of 1997. The loan portfolio,
totalling $1.2 billion at December 31, 2001, grew as a
percentage of assets
to 58.1%, from 45.4%
for 1997.

Our mission to diver-
sify our retail branch
deposit mix has pro-
gressed due to the
efforts of our retail
staff and business
development officers.
The level of certifi-
cates as a percentage
of total deposits was
reduced to 49.7% at
December 31, 2001 from 59.5% at the end of 1997, while
core deposits increased from 41.5% to 50.3%. Commercial
deposits totaled $57 million at December 31, 2001, and we
will strive to expand that base in coming years. Cultivating
relationships and improving household penetration will
continue to drive our marketing efforts.

Loan Originations
(dollars in millions)
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Non-performing Assets
(dollars in millions)

97 798 99 00 01

Deposit Composition

At December 31, 2001

B 4% Non-interest Bearing
CJ 9% NOW Checking

0 24% Money Market
J13% Savings

(050% Certificates




POSITIONING for th

Enhancing shareholder value through exempl:

Maintaining Asset Quality

Our asset quality continues to be excellent. We utilize
strict underwriting standards for all types of loans. Non-
performing assets to total assets declined to 0.09% at
December 31, 2001, from a relatively low 0.61% at the
end of 1997, despite a 74% increase in the loan portfolio
during that time span.

Building Our Franchise

We completed our acquisition of Pulse Bancorp in
1998, which expanded our franchise into southern
Middlesex County, a county ranked third in population
growth and second in household growth. At December 31,
2001, deposits totaled $1.3 billion, increasing 7.2% from
the end of 1997. We anticipate opening five new branch
Net Income locations in the next three years, starting with a full-
(doliars in millions) service branch in Somerset, which opened in February
2002. We will continue to seek ways to increase pene-
tration in our existing and surrounding market areas by
exploring both de novo and acquisition opportunities.

Managing Interest Rate Risk

Effectively managing interest rate risk has never been
more important than it was in 2001. The Federal Reserve
lowered the Fed Funds target rate an unprecedented

‘00 01
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vice and execution of the strategic plan

11 times in 2001. The low interest rate environment
was the driving force behind record loan refinancings,
which tend to increase interest rate risk for many Dividends

financial institutions. (dollars)
(includes special dividend

of $0.15 in 1999)
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First Sentinel, however, maintained its interest rate
risk profile by selling 30-year, fixed-rate conforming
mortgage loans and retaining adjustable-rate mort-
gages. Our loan and mortgage-backed security portfo-
lios were comprised of 53% and 65% adjustable-rate
mortgages, respectively, at year-end. All of our invest-
ments and mortgage-backed securities are available for
sale. In addition, we have increased our core deposits,
which has reduced the interest sensitivity of our liabil-
ities. Our asset-sensitive risk position should provide a
measure of protection if and when interest rates rise.

Generating Earnings Per Share Growth 97 99 ‘00 01

As a public company, we have proven our ability to
leverage capital prudently, from a high of 21.5% to )
10.8% at December 31, 2001. We also generated a 136% @~ PayoutRatio
increase in diluted earnings per share over that same
period, from $0.35 per share to $0.82 per share for
2001. We have accomplished this without the use of
“cash earnings” reporting that many institutions are pre-
senting: our earnings are core. Through stock repur-
chases, the Pulse acquisition and a 173% increase in our
annual cash dividend, we have strategically deployed our
capital to enhance shareholder return. We improved our
return on equity from 7.41% to 11.09%
since going public. By comparison, of

& Dividends Per Share

the thrifts that converted to stock form : m -
in 1998, the mean return on average o S

equity was 6.58% for the twelve months
ended September 2001, the last date for
which such information is available.
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Board of Directors

Maintaining Operating Efficiencies
In 1997, we formulated our business plan to become
more bank-like, while maintaining tight control of oper-
ating expenses. We believe that the key to consistent
operating earnings performance is to be an efficient,
low cost and service-oriented provider of financial
products and services. Since 1997, we have introduced
numerous new commercial products, including busi-
ness accounts, real estate loans and lines of credit, and
consumer products including tele-

phone banking, debit cards and, in
2001, Internet banking with bill
payment capabilities.

Further enhancements of our
delivery system will be operational
in the second quarter of 2002,
including a new branch automation
system with signature verification
and documentation preparation.
These improvements will streamline
the account opening process, pro-
vide the tools necessary for our staff
to sell more of our products and
better align our services to meet the
needs of our customers.

Commitment to Service
First Sentinel strives to be a
good neighbor and a positive

Standing from left to right: George T. Hornyak, Jr., Joseph Chadwick, John P. Mulkerin, resource in our communities. We
Jeffries Shein, Christopher Martin. Seated from left to right: Walter K. Timpson, Philip T. support numerous charitable and

Ruegger, Jr., Keith H. McLaughlin.

civic organizations. We offer free

home buyer education classes, a
special discount mortgage program for borrowers with
limited resources, and participate in a “First Home
Club” program which offers first-time home buyers a
matched savings program up to $5,000. We also par-
ticipate in a consortium of lenders that finances afford-
able housing for senior citizens, disabled individuals
and low-to-moderate income families.
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The following selected financial data and selected operating data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements of the Company and accompanying notes thereto, which are presented elsewhere herein.

December 31, 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(Dollars in thousands)
Selected Financial Data:
Total assets $2,138,919 $1,968,709 $1,904,696 $1,855,058 $1,575,332
Loans receivable, net 1,242,779 1,184,802 1,016,116 854,697 715,810
Investment securities — — — — 127,583
Investment securities available for sale 107,988 234,970 213,590 242,197 78,443
Other interest-earning assets (1) 40,541 40,693 37,175 27,652 28,795
Mortgage-backed securities, net — — — — 369,920
Mortgage-backed securities available for sale 642,716 447,022 575,159 661,881 200,530
Deposits 1,315,264 1,219,336‘ 1,213,724 1,268,119 1,227,304
Borrowed funds 545,814 505,955 422,000 264,675 186,665
Preferred capital securities 25,000 — — — —
Stockholders’ equity 230,127 222,163 244,580 299,819 144,893
Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Selected Operating Data: o
Interest income $ 133,585 $ 136,789 § 123,388 $ 119,173 $ 109,241
Interest expense 74,684 78,872 65,006 65,386 63,558
Net interest income 58,901 57,917 58,382 53,787 45,683
Provision for loan losses 650 1,441 1,650 1,469 1,200
Net interest income after
provision for loan losses 58,251 56,476 56,732 52,318 44,483
Non-interest income (2) 4,455 2,269 3,631 4,696 3,383
Non-interest expense (3) 25,934 24,678 24,556 26,577 24,210
Income before income tax expense 36,772 34,067 35,807 30,437 23,656
Income tax expense ‘ 11,461 11,099 12,155 10,944 8,686
Net income $ 25,311 $ 22968 § 23,652 $ 19,493 § 14,970
Basic earnings per share (4) $0.84 $0.69 $0.60 $0.46 $0.35
Diluted earnings per-share 4 $0.82 $0.68 $0.59 $0.46 $0.35
Dividends per share, as adjusted 4)- $0.30 $0.24 $0.37 $0.15 $0.11
At or For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Selected Financial Ratios: _
Return on average assets (2) (3) 1.25% 1.17% 1.25% 1.12% 0.96%
Return on average stockholders’ equity (2) (3 11.09 10.17 7.99 7.41 10.88
Average stockholders’ equity to average assets 11.31 11.52 15.69 15.07 8.86
Stockholders’” equity to total assets 11.29 12.84 16.16 9.20

10.76

(1) Includes federal funds sold and investment in the stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (“FHLB-NY”).

(2) Includes the effect of the sale of the Eatontown branch that realized a $1.1 million gain, or $687,000 net of tax, in 1998.

(3) Includes the effect of non-recurring items in 1998 and 1997. The non-recurring item in 1998 was the $2.1 million, or $1.7 million net of tax,
merger-related charge for the acquisition of Pulse Bancorp. The non-recurring item in 1997 was an impairment writedown of core deposit goodwill

totaling $1.3 million, or $867,000 net of tax. -

(4) Per share data gives effect to all stock dividends and splits and the exchange of 3.9133 shares of Company Common Stock for each share
of Bank Common Stock in connection with the 1998 conversion and reorganization of First Savings Bancshares, MHC.

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries




General ‘

Statements contained in this report that are not histor-
ical fact are forward-looking statements, as that term is
defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Such statements may be characterized as manage-
ment’s intentions, hopes, beliefs, expectations or pre-
dictions of the future. It is important to note that such
forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected in such forward-looking
statements. Factors that could cause future results to
vary materially from current expectations include, but are
not limited to, changes in interest rates, economic con-
ditions, deposit and loan growth, real estate values, loan
loss provisions, competition, customer retention,
changes in accounting principles, policies or guidelines
and legislative and regulatory changes.

Comparison of Financizl Condition al
December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000
Assers. Total assets increased by $170.2 million, or 8.7%,

to $2.1 billion at December 31, 2001. The change in.

assets consisted primarily of increases in loans receivable,
mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”) available for sale,
other assets, and cash and cash equivalents; partially off-
set by decreases in investment securities available for
sale and interest and dividends receivable.

Loans receivable, net totaled $1.2 billion at
December 31, 2001, representing an increase of $58.0
million, or 4.9%, from December 31, 2000. Loan origi-
nations totaled $486.6 million for 2001, compared to
$329.2 million for 2000. The Company experienced an
increase in loan applications and originations in 2001
compared with 2000, primarily in one-to-four family and
multi-family residential loans, as a result of the lower
interest rate environment. Fixed-rate, one-to-four family
first mortgage loan originations totaled $113.1 million,
or 23.2% of total production, while adjustable-rate, one-
to-four family mortgage loans accounted for $113.7 mil-
lion, or 23.4% of total originations for 2001. Consumer
loan originations, including home equity loans and credit
lines, totaled $113.5 million, or 23.3% of total origina-
tions, while construction lending totaled $86.4 million,
or 17.8% of total originations. Commercial real estate,
commercial and multi-family loan originations totaled
$59.9 million, or 12.3% of total originations. Mortgage
loans purchased totaled $19.1 million in 2001, compared
with $87.8 million in 2000. Loans purchased were pri-
marily adjustable-rate, one-to-four family mortgages,
underwritten internally, with higher rates than those
currently offered by the Company.

Repayment of principal on loans totaled $398.7 million
for 2001, compared to $237.6 million for 2000. Inctuded
in the repayment of principal on loans, mortgage loan
refinancing totaled $72.0 million for 2001, compared
with $8.0 million for 2000. The Company also sold
$46.6 million of primarily fixed-rate, one-to-four family
mortgage loans during 2001 as part of its ongoing
interest rate risk management process. At December 31,
2001, one-to-four family mortgage loans comprised 68.4%
of total loans receivable, net of loans in process, while
commercial real estate, multi-family and construction
loans comprised 20.9% and home equity loans accounted

" for 9.0% of the loan portfolio. In comparison, at

December 31, 2000, one-to-four family mortgage loans
comprised 73.7% of total loans receivable, net of loans
in process, while commercial real estate, multi-family
and construction loans comprised 15.4% and home
equity loans accounted for 9.5% of the loan portfolio.
The Company intends to continue to prudently expand
its non-residential mortgage lending activities while
maintaining its underwriting standards and commitment
to community-based lending. Loans receivable, net as a
percentage of total assets declined slightly to 58.1% at
December 31, 2001, compared to 60.2% at December 31,
2000, despite the growth in the loan portfolio, as a result of
the leveraged growth in the MBS portfolio and the purchase
of $25.0 million of bank owned life insurance (“BOLI").

While management intends to continue emphasizing
the origination of loans, the future levels of loan origi-
nations and repayments will be significantly influenced
by external interest rates and other economic factors
outside of the control of the Company. The Company
expects that origination and prepayment activity will
slow somewhat in 2002 as interest rates stabilize, loan
refinancing diminishes and competition increases.

MBS available for sale increased $195.7 million, or
43.8%, to.$642.7 million at December 31, 2001, from
$447.0 million at December 31, 2000. The increase was
primarily due to purchases of $549.1 million exceeding
sales and principal repayments of $214.3 million and
$146.9 million, respectively, for 2001. The Company
executed several leveraged securities purchases during
2001, acquiring approximately $138.5 million in MBS
which were funded by longer-term borrowings. Leveraged
growth has a positive impact on the Company’'s net
interest income, earnings and return on equity, while
causing some compression of its net interest margin.
The Company will continue to evaluate leverage strate-
gies in the future, giving appropriate consideration to
current market and economic conditions along with
balance sheet composition.

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries




Other assets increased $26.2 million, to $37.6 million
at December 31, 2001, compared with $11.3 million at
December 31, 2000. The increase was primarily attribut-
able to the purchase of $25.0 million of BOLI during the
second quarter of 2001. BOLI provides an attractive tax-
exempt return to the Company and is used to fund various
employee benefit costs.

Cash and cash equivalents increased $18.8 million, or
33.4%, to $53.9 million as of December 31, 2001, from
$35.1 million at December 31, 2000.

Investment securities available for sale decreased
$127.0 million, or 54.0%, to $108.0 million as of
December 31, 2001, from $235.0 million at December 31,
2000. For the year 2001, purchases totaled $59.3 million,
while sales, calls and maturities totaled $192.8 million.
Purchases during 2001 consisted primarily of debt
securities issued by U.S. corporations and government-
sponsored agencies. Lower market interest rates resulted
in a significant increase in the exercise of call provisions
on U.S. government agency debt securities during 2001.
Proceeds from sales, calls and maturities were used to
fund loan growth, purchase BOLI, purchase MBS and
repurchase the Company's common stock. ‘

Liabilities. Deposits increased $95.9 million, or 7.9%,
to $1.3 billion at December 31, 2001, with $90.4 million
of the increase attributable to core deposits, consisting
of checking, savings and money market accounts. At
December 31, 2001, core deposits accounted for 50.3%
of total deposits, up from 46.8% at December 31, 2000.
While deposit growth was undoubtedly aided by uncer-
tainty in the equity markets in 2001, the Company
intends to continue its emphasis on core deposit rela-
tionships, differentiating itself through exemplary service
and comprehensive product offerings. Borrowed funds
increased $39.9 million, or 7.9%, to $545.8 million at
December 31, 2001. The increased borrowed funds
were used primarily to fund loan originations and
leverage securities purchases.

Preferred Capital Securities. In November 2001, the
Company issued $25.0 million of Company-obligated
mandatorily redeemable preferred capital securities
through special purpose business trusts. Of the $25.0
million of preferred capital securities sold, $12.5 million
have a floating rate of interest, which resets semi-annually,
equal to 6-month LIBOR plus 3.75%. The floating rate,
however, may not exceed 11.0% in the first five years.
The remaining $12.5 million of preferred capital securi-
ties have a fixed interest rate of 9.95%. Preferred capital
securities provide a cost efficient means of accessing the
capital markets while providing additional Tier 1 regula-
tory capital. Proceeds from the issuance of the securities
are being used for general corporate purposes, including

the payment of dividends on and repurchases of the
Company’s common stock.

Stockholders’ Equity. Stockholders’ equity increased
$8.0 million for 2001. The Company repurchased $22.2
million of its common stock during 2001 as part of its
ongoing capital management strategy. This represented
1.9 million shares at an average cost of $11.50 per share.
Stockholders’ equity was further reduced by cash divi-
dends declared totaling $9.1 million in 2001. These
decreases were offset by net income of $25.3 million, an
increase in accumulated other comprehensive income of
$10.7 million as a result of the increase in market values
of investment securities and MBS available for sale, net
of related tax benefit, and amortization of benefit plans
totaling $2.1 million. Book value and tangible book
value per share were $7.44 and $7.26, respectively, at
December 31, 2001, compared to $6.78 and $6.59,
respectively, at December 31, 2000.

- Comparison of Operating Results for the Years

Ended December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000

Results of Operations. For the year ended December 31,
2001, basic and diluted earnings per share totaled $0.84
and $0.82, respectively, representing increases of 21.7%
and 20.1%, respectively, over basic and diluted earnings

. per share of $0.69 and $0.68, respectively, for the year

ended December 31, 2000. Net income for 2001 totaled
$25.3 million, an increase of $2.3 million, or 10.2%, com-
pared with net income of $23.0 million for 2000. Return
on average equity improved to 11.09% for 2001, from
10.17% for 2000. Return on average assets improved to
1.25% for 2001, from 1.17% for 2000.

Interest Income. Interest income decreased $3.2 mil-
lion, or 2.3%, to $133.6 million for 2001, compared to
$136.8 million for 2000. Interest on loans increased $5.5
million, or 6.5%, to $89.7 million for 2001, compared to
$84.2 million for 2000. The average balance of the loan
portfolio for 2001 increased to $1.2 billion, from $1.1 bil-
lion for 2000, while the average vield on the portfolio
decreased to 7.35% for 2001, from 7.51% for 2000.

Interest on investment securities and MBS available for
sale decreased $8.7 million, or 16.6%, to $43.9 million
for 2001, compared to $52.6 million for 2000. The aver-
age balance of investment securities and MBS available
for sale totaled $735.6 million, with an average vield of
5.97% for 2001, compared with an average balance of
$818.0 million, with an average vield of 6.43% for 2000.
The decline in yield was attributable to the reinvestment
of cash flows from the repayment and prepayment of
MBS and callable agency securities at lower market

interest rates throughout 2001, as well as the downward

repricing of varjable rate investments.

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries




Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $4.2 mil-
lion, or 5.3%, to $74.7 million for 2001, compared to
$78.9 million for 2000. Interest expense on deposits
decreased $771,000, or 1.6%, to $47.2 million for 2001,
compared to $48.0 million for 2000. The decreased
interest expense on deposits was primarily attributable
to a reduction in interest paid on certificates of deposit
-of $1.0 million, partially offset by increased interest paid
on NOW, money market and savings accounts resulting
from increased deposit levels. The average cost of cer-
tificates of deposit for 2001 was 5.11%, compared to
5.38% for 2000. The average balance of certificates of
deposit was $660.1 million for 2001, compared with
$646.8 million for 2000. The average balance of core
deposits was $603.5 million for 2001, compared to
$568.8 millien for 2000. The average interest cost on
 interest-bearing core deposits for 2001 was 2.44%, com-
pared to 2.54% for 2000. Non-interest-bearing accounts
averaged $53.4 million for 2001, up from $48.6 million
for 2000. Average core deposits to total average deposits
improved to 47.8% for 2001 from 46.8% for 2000,

Interest on borrowed funds for 2001 decreased $3.4
million, or 11.1%, to $27.5 million, compared to $30.9
million for 2000. The average interest cost of borrowed
funds declined to 5.54% for 2001, from 6.14% for 2000.
Average borrowings for 2001 totaled $495.7 million,
compared with $503.4 million for 2000.

Net Imterest Income. Net interest income increased
$984,000, or 1.7%, to $58.9 million for 2001, compared
to $57.9 million for 2000. The increase was due to the
changes in interest income and interest expense
described previously. Changes in earning asset yields
and interest-bearing liability costs reflect downward
interest rate movements throughout 2001, as the Federal
Reserve moved to reduce the federal funds rate eleven
times, from 6.5% at January 1, 2001 to 1.75% at
December 31, 2001. Net interest spread, defined as the
difference between the average yield on interest-earning
assets and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities,
increased 12 basis points to 2.45% in 2001, from 2.33%
in 2000. This increase was due to a decrease in the cost of
interest-bearing liabilities to 4.38% for 2001, from 4.72%
in 2000, partially offset by a decrease in the yield on
interest-earning assets to 6.83%, from 7.05% for the
same respective periods. The net interest margin,
defined as net interest income divided by average total
interest-earning assets, increased two basis points to
3.01% in 2001, compared to 2.99% in 2000. Net interest
margin growth was constrained in 2001 by $138.5 mil-
lion in leveraged securities purchases, which enhanced
earnings and return on equity, but reduced net interest
margin. In addition, the purchase of $25.0 million of
BOLI also contributed to earnings and return on equity
growth but reduced earning assets and related net inter-
est income. BOLI is classified as other assets on the
statement of financial condition and related income is clas-
sified as non-interest income. $22.2 million in common
stock repurchases during 2001 further reduced earning
assets and impacted net interest margin. The Company
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anticipates some net interest margin expansion in 2002
as a result of the favorable liability repricing which
occurred throughout 2001, as well as projected continued
downward repricing of time deposits in 2002.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses
decreased $791,000, or 54.9%, to $650,000 for 2001,
compared to $1.4 million for 2000. The provision was
based upon management’s review and evaluation of the
size and composition of the loan portfolio, actual loan
loss experience, level of delinquencies, general market
and economic conditions, detailed analysis of individual
loans for which full collectibility may not be assured,
and the existence and net realizable value of the collat-
eral and guarantees securing the loans. Although man-
agement uses the best information available, the level of
the allowance for loan losses remains an estimate which
is subject to significant judgment and short-term change.
Various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examination process, periodically review the Company’s
allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require
the Company to make additional provisions for loan
losses based upon information available to them at the
time of their examination. Furthermore, the majority of
the Company’s loans are secured by real estate in the

© State of New Jersey. Accordingly, the collectibility of a

substantial portion of the carrying value of the
Company’s loan portfolio is susceptible to changes in
local market conditions and may be adversely affected
should real estate values decline or the Central New
Jersey area experience an adverse economic shock.
Future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary
due to economic, operating, regulatory and other condi-
tions beyond the Company’s control. The allowance for
loan losses represented 1.03% of total loans, or 6.99 times
non-performing loans at December 31, 2001, compared
with 1.03% of total loans, or 5.17 times non-performing
loans at December 31, 2000. In management’s opinion,
the allowance for loan losses, totaling $12.9 million is
adequate to cover losses inherent in the portfolio at
December 31, 2001. »

Nomn-interest Income. Non-interest income, consisting

‘primarily of deposit product fees and service charges,

gains and losses on loans and securities sold, income on
BOLI and loan servicing fees, increased $2.2 million, or
96.3%, to $4.5 million for 2001, compared to $2.3 mil-
lion for 2000. Nét gains on sales of loans and securities
totaled $587,000 for 2001, compared to net losses total-
ing $876,000 for 2000. Proceeds from the sales of loans
and securities in 2001 were used to purchase BOLI,
repurchase the Company’s common stock and fund cur-
rent operations. Sales of loans and securities and related
gains and losses are dependent on market conditions, as
well as the Company’s liquidity and risk management
needs. Income attributable to the increase in cash sur-
render value of BOLI, purchased in June 2001, amounted
to $791,000 for the year.

Non-interest Expense. Non-interest expense increased
$1.2 million, or 5.1%, to $25.9 million for 2001, compared
to $24.7 million for 2000. The increase was primarily




attributable to increased healthcare and other benefit
costs, including non-cash compensation expense related
to the Company's Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(“ESOP”) totaling $1.2 million in 2001 compared to
$932,000 in 2000. The increase in the ESOP expense was
a result of the Company’s stock price appreciation dur-
ing 2001, as ESOP expense is determined based upon
the market value of the shares when they are committed
to be released. In addition, accrual of distributions on
preferred capital securities issued in November 2001,
amounted to $194,000 for 2001.

Non-interest expense (excluding goodwill amortiza-
tion and distributions on preferred capital securities)
divided by average assets was 1.23% for 2001, compared
with 1.22% for the prior year. The efficiency ratio (non-
interest expense, excluding distributions on preferred
capital securities, divided by the sum of net interest
income plus non-interest income, excluding gains and
losses on the sale of loans and securities) was 41.01%
for 2001, compared with 40.41% in 2000. Non-interest
expense is expected to increase moderately in 2002 as a
result of distributions on the preferred capital securities
offering completed 'in November 2001, as well as the
opening of a new branch location in Somerset, New
Jersey in the first quarter of 2002.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years
Ended December 31, 2000 and December 31, 1999

Results of Operations. For the year ended December 31,
2000, basic and diluted earnings per share totaled $0.69
and $0.68, respectively, representing increases of 14.6%
and 15.7%, respectively, over basic and diluted earnings
per share of $0.60 and $0.59, respectively, for the year.
ended December 31, 1999. Net income for 2000 totaled
$23.0 million, a decrease of $684,000, or 2.9%, com-
pared with net income of $23.7 million for 1999.
Earnings per share increased despite the reduction in
net income, as the Company repurchased 5.7 million
shares of its common stock at an average cost of $8.53
per share during 2000. Return on average equity improved
to 10.17% for 2000 from 7.99% for 1999 as the Company
continued to leverage its capital through internal loan
growth, share repurchases and cash dividends.

Interest Income. Interest income increased $13.4 mil-
lion, or 10.9%, to $136.8 million for 2000, compared to
$123.4 million for 1999. Interest on loans increased $15.5
million, or 22.6%, to $84.2 million for 2000, compared to
$68.7 million for 1999. The average balance of the loan
portfolio for 2000 increased to $1.1 billion, from $935.0
million for 1999, while the average yvield on the portfolio
increased to 7.51% for 2000, from 7.34% for 1999.

Interest on investment securities and MBS available for

sale decreased $2.1 million, or 3.9%, to $52.6 million for
2000, compared to $54.7 million for 1999. The average
balance of the investment and MBS portfolios totaled
$818.0 million, with an average yield of 6.43% for 2000,
while the portfolios’ average balance was $904.7 million,
with an average vield of 6.05% for 1999.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $13.9 mil-
lion, or 21.3%, to $78.9 million for 2000, compared to
$65.0 million for 1999. Interest expense on deposits
incredsed $753,000, or 1.6%, to $48.0 million for 2000,

compared to $47.2 million for 1999. The increased inter-

est expense on deposits was primarily attributable to
higher rates paid on certificates of deposits. The average
cost of certificates for 2000 was 5.38%, compared to
4.94% for 1999. The average balance of certificates of
deposit, however, decreased to $646.8 million for 2000,
from $686.8 million for 1999. The average balance of
core accounts totaled $568.8 million for 2000, compared
to $563.0 million for 1999. Average core deposits to total
average deposits improved to 46.8% for 2000 from
45.0% for 1999. The average interest cost on all deposits
for 2000 was 3.95%, compared to 3.78% for 1999. Non-
interest-bearing accounts averaged $48.6 million for
2000, up from $44.8 million for 1999.

Interest on borrowed funds for 2000 increased $13.1
million, or 73.8%, to $30.9 million, compared to $17.8
million for 1999. The increase in the average balance of
borrowed funds for 2000 to $503.4 million, from $325.5
million, was attributable to management’s strategy of
funding earning asset growth through the use of bor-
rowed funds, where accretive to earnings. The average
interest cost of borrowed funds was 6.14% for 2000,
compared with 5.46% for 1999.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income decreased
$465,000, or 0.8%, to $57.9 million for 2000, compared
to $58.4 million for 1999. The decrease was due to the
changes in interest income and interest expense
described previously. Net interest spread decreased 13
basis points to 2.33% in 2000, from 2.46% in 1999. This
decrease was due to an increase in the cost of interest-
bearing liabilities to 4.72% for 2000, from 4.25% in 1999,
partially offset by an increase in the yield on interest-
earning assets to 7.05%, from 6.71% for the same respective
periods. The net interest margin decreased 18 basis
points to 2.99% in 2000, compared to 3.17% in 1999.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses
decreased $209,000, or 12.7%, to $1.4 million for 2000,
compared to $1.7 million for 1999. The allowance for
loan losses represented 1.03% of total loans, or 5.17 times
non-performing loans at December 31, 2000, compared
with - 1.07% of total loans, or 4.10 times non-performing
loans at December 31, 1999,

Nown-interest Income. Non-interest income decreased
$1.4 million, or 37.5%, to $2.3 million for 2000, com-
pared to $3.6 million for 1999. Net losses on loans and
securities available for sale totaled $876,000 for 2000,
compared to net gains totaling $684,000 for 1999. The
losses were taken in response to the increase in short-
term interest rates during 2000, making certain fixed-rate
loans and securities less profitable while the cost of
funds increased.
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Other income, net increased by $296,000, or 65.9%, to
' $745,000 for 2000, compared with $449,000 for 1999,
primarily as a result of reduced REO expenses totaling
$74,000 in 2000, compared with $381,000 for 1999.
Foreclosed assets totaled $257,000 at December 31,
2000, and consisted of two residential properties.
Nomn-interest Expense. Non-interest expense increased
$122,000, or 0.5%, to $24.7 million for 2000, compared
to $24.6 million for 1999. Compensation and benefits
expense increased $987,000, or 7.2%, primarily as a
result of increased healthcare and other benefits expenses.
This increase was partially offset by a $507,000, or
66.3% reduction in deposit insurance costs resulting
from a change in the FDIC assessment rate, as well as
reduced supervisory costs resulting from the Bank's
conversion to a state-chartered savings bank in January
2000, and non-recurring acquisition integration costs
recorded in 1999. '
Non-interest expense (excluding goodwill amortiza-
tion) divided by average assets fell to 1.22% for 2000,
from 1.26% for the prior vear. The efficiency ratio
increased slightly to 40.41% for 2000 from 40.04% in 1999.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s liquidity is a measure of its ability to
generate sufficient cash flows to meet all of its current
and future financial obligations and commitments. The

Company’s primary sources of funds are deposits; pro-.

ceeds from principal and interest payments on loans
and MBS; sales of loans, MBS and investments available
for sale; maturities or calls of investment securities and
advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New
York (“FHLB-NY”) and other borrowed funds. Further,
the Company may access additional liquidity through
the capital markets, as in the trust preferred securities
offering completed in November 2001. While maturities
and scheduled amortization of loans and MBS are a pre-
dictable source of funds, deposit flows and mortgage
prepayments are greatly influenced by interest rates,
economic conditions, and competition.

The primary investing activity of the Company is the
origination of loans. During 2001, 2000 and 1999, the
Company originated loans in the amounts of $486.6 mil-
lion, $329.2 million and $351.5 million, respectively. The
Company also purchases loans and mortgage-backed
and investment securities. Purchases of mortgage loans
totaled $19.1 million, $87.8 million and $57.5 million in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Purchases of MBS
totaled $549.1 million, $153.9 million and $372.9 million
in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Purchases of
investment securities totaled $59.3 million, $66.7 million
and $131.4 million for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Other investing activities included investment in FHLB-
NY stock and the purchase of $25.0 million in BOLI in
2001. The investing activities were funded primarily by
principal repayments on loans and MBS of $545.7 mil-
lion, $329.4 million and $441.9 million for 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively. Additionally, proceeds from
sales, calls and maturities of mortgage-backed and
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investment securities totaling $407.8 million, $247.3 mil-
lion and $384.9 million for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respec-
tively, provided additional liquidity. Liquidity was also
provided by proceeds from sales of loans totaling $46.6
million, $9.7 million and $7.2 million for 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively.

The Company has several other sources of liquidity,
including FHLB-NY advances. At December 31, 2001,
such advances totaled $165.8 million, of which $25.0
million are due in 2002. If necessary, the Company has
additional borrowing capacity with the FHLB-NY,
including an available overnight line of credit of up to
$50.0 million. The Company also had other borrowings
that provided additional liquidity, totaling $380.0 million
at December 31, 2001, $30.0 million of which are due in
2002. Other sources of liquidity include unpledged
investment and mortgage-backed securities available for
sale, with an amortized cost totaling $344.7 million at
December 31, 2001. In addition, the Company issued
$25.0 million in preferred capital securities during 2001.

The Company anticipates that it will have sufficient
funds available to meet its current commitments. At
December 31, 2001, the Company had commitments to
originate and purchase mortgage loans of $103.7 mil-
lion. The Company is obligated to pay $1.2 million
under its lease agreements for branch and administrative
facilities, of which $439,000 is due in 2002. Certificates
of deposit which are scheduled to mature in one year or
less totaled $527.3 million at December 31, 2001. Based
upon historical experience, management estimates that
a significant portion of such deposits will remain with
the Company.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements and notes pre-
sented herein have been prepared in accordance with
generally” accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”),

- which require the measurement of financial position

and operating results in terms of historical dollars with-
out considering the changes in the relative purchasing
power of money due to inflation. The impact of inflation
is reflected in the increased cost of the Company’s oper-
ations. Unlike most ihdustrial companies, nearly all of
the assets and liabilities of the Company are monetary
in nature. As a result, interest rates have a greater impact
on the Company’s performance than do the effects of -
general levels of .inflation. Interest rates do not neces-
sarily move in the same direction or to the same extent
as the price of goods and services.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in
market rates and prices. The Company’s market risk arises
primarily from interest rate risk inherent in its lending,
investment and deposit activities. The Company’s prof-
itability is affected by fluctuations in interest rates. A sud-
den and substantial change in interest rates may adversely
impact the Company’s earnings to the extent that the
interest rates borne by assets and liabilities do not




change at the same speed, to the same extent or on the
same basis. To that end, management actively monitors
and manages its interest rate risk exposure.

The principal objective of the Company’s interest rate
risk management is to evaluate the interest rate risk
inherent in certain balance sheet accounts, determine
the level of risk appropriate given the Company’s busi-
ness strategy, operating environment, capital and liquid-
ity requirements and performance objectives, and
manage the risk consistent with the Board of Directors’
approved guidelines. Through such management, the
Company seeks to minimize the vulnerability of its oper-
ations to changes in interest rates. The Company’s Board
of Directors reviews the Company’s interest rate risk posi-
tion quarterly. The Company’s Asset/Liability Committee
is comprised of the Company’s senior management under
the direction of the Board of Directors, with senior man-
agement responsible for reviewing with the Board of
Directors its activities and strategies, the effect of those
strategies on the Company’s net interest income, the mar-
ket value of the portfolio and the effect that changes in
interest rates will have on the Company’s portfolio and its
exposure limits. In addition, the Company has established
an Asset/Liability Strategy Committee, a subcommittee of
the Asset/Liability Committee, which is charged with
establishing and maintaining a monitoring system for all
marketing initiatives, providing management repotts, and
formulating and recommending strategies to the
Asset/Liability Committee.

The Company utilizes the following strategies to man-
age interest rate risk: (1) emphasizing the origination
and retention of fixed-rate mortgage loans having terms
to maturity of not more than 22 years, adjustable-rate
loans and consumer loans consisting primarily of home
equity loans and lines of credit; (2) selling substantially
all fixed-rate conforming mortgage loans with terms of
thirty years without recourse and on a servicing-retained
basis; (3) investing primarily in adjustable-rate and short
average-life MBS, which may generally bear lower yields
as compared to longer-term investments, but which bet-
ter position the Company for increases in market inter-
est rates, and holding these securities as available for
sale and (4) also investing in U.S. government and
agency securities that have call features which, histori-
cally, have significantly decreased the duration of such
securities. The Company currently does not participate
in hedging programs, interest rate swaps or other activ-
ities involving the use of off-balance sheet derivative
financial instruments, but may do so in the future to
mitigate interest rate risk.

The Company’s interest rate sensitivity is monitored by
management through the use of an interest rate risk
(“IRR") model which measures IRR by projecting the
change in net interest income (“NII”) and the economic
value of equity (“EVE") over a range of interest rate sce-
narios. The EVE is defined as the current market value of
assets, minus the current market value of liabilities, plus
or minus the current value of off-balance sheet items.

The greater the potential change, positive or negative,
in NII or EVE, the more interest rate risk is assumed to
exist within the institution. The following table lists the
Company’s percentage change in NII and EVE assuming
an immediate change of plus or minus up to 200 basis
points from the level of interest rates at December 31,
2001 and 2000, as calculated by the Company.

Change in Percentage Percentage

Interest Rates Change Change

in Basis Points in NII in EVE

(Rate Shock) 2001 2000 2001 2000
+200 10 -4 4 -18
+100 6 -2 4 -8
Static —_ — _— —
-100 -10 -3 -12 -2
-200 -20 -9 -24 -10

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology
used in the above interest rate risk measurements.
Modeling changes in NII and EVE requires the making
of certain assumptions which may or may not reflect the
manner in which actual yields and costs respond to
changes in market interest rates. In this regard, the
model presented assumes that the composition of the
Company’s interest sensitive assets and liabilities exist-
ing at the beginning of a period remains constant over
the period being measured, assumes that a particular
change in interest rates is reflected uniformly across the
yield curve regardless of the duration to maturity or
repricing of specific assets and liabilities and also does
not consider the Company’s strategic plans. Accordingly,
although the EVE and NII models provide an indication
of the Company’s IRR exposure at a particular point in
time, such measurements are not intended to and do not
provide a precise forecast of the effect of changes in
market interest rates on the Company’s net interest
income and will differ from actual results.

The results of the IRR analysis described above depict
the Company’s asset sensitive position at December 31,
2001. This is in contrast to the liability sensitive position
existing at December 31, 2000, and reflects growth in
construction loans and other short-term and variable-
rate earning assets, as well as growth in core deposits
which are considered to be largely non-rate sensitive.
This asset sensitivity is expected to decline somewhat in
the coming months, as near-term cash flows from loan
and MBS refinancing and prepayments diminish. The
Company has managed its IRR position with a rising rate
bias at December 31, 2001, as management believes we
are at or near the trough in the interest rate cycle.
Accordingly, IRR model results at December 31, 2001
under rising rate scenarios have improved while results
under declining rate scenarios have worsened when
compared with December 31, 2000. All results are within
Board-approved risk management limits.
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December 31, 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts)
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 33,875 $ 14,069
Federal funds sold 20,000 21,050
Total cash and cash equivalents 53,875 35,119
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB-NY) stock, at cost 20,541 19,643
Investment securities available for sale 107,988 234,970
Mortgage-backed securities available for sale 642,716 447,022
Loans receivable, net 1,242,779 1,184,802
Interest and dividends receivable 12,039 13,481
Premises and equipment, net 16,014 16,092
Excess of cost over fair value of net assets acquired 5,411 6,259
Other assets 37,556 11,321
Total assets $2,138,919 $1,968,709
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Deposits $1,315,264 $1,219,336
Borrowed funds 545,814 505,955
Advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance 9,735 9,154
Other liabilities 12,979 12,101
Total liabilities 1,883,792 1,746,546
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred capital securities of a
subsidiary trust holding solely junior subordinated debentures of the Company 25,000 —
Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock; authorized 10,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding—none — —
Common stock, $.01 par value, 85,000,000 shares authorized,;
43,106,742 and 30,940,117 shares issued and outstanding in 2001 and
43,106,742 and 32,749,994 shares issued and outstanding in 2000 430 430
Paid-in capital 201,858 201,264
Retained earnings 148,463 132,537
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 2,178 (8,534)
Common stock acquired by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) (10,321) (11,238)
Common stock acquired by the Recognition and Retention Plan (RRP) {1,910) (2,788)
Treasury stock (12,088,836 and 10,288,827 common shares
in 2001 and 2000, respectively) (110,571) (89,508)
Total stockholders’ equity 230,127 222,163
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,138,919 $1,968,709

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries




EMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Interest income:
Loans $ 89,678 $ 84,174 $ 68,656
Investment and mortgage-backed securities available for sale 43,907 52,615 54,732
Total interest income 133,585 136,789 123,388
Interest expense:
Deposits:
NOW and money market demand 9,654 9,452 9,395
Savings 3,790 3,744 3,931
Certificates of deposit 33,764 34,783 33,900
Total interest expense—deposits 47,208 47,979 47,226
Borrowed funds 27,476 30,893 17,780
Total interest expense 74,684 78,872 65,006
Net interest income 58,901 57,917 58,382
Provision for loan losses 650 - 1,441 1,650
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 58,251 56,476 56,732
Non-interest income:
Fees and service charges 2,416 2,400 2,498
Net gain (loss) on sales of loans and securities 587 (876) 684
Income on Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLD) 791 — —
Other, net 661 745 449
Total non-interest income 4,455 2,269 3,631
Non-interest expense:
Compensation and benefits 15,377 14,685 13,698
Occupancy 2,255 2,312 2,225
Equipment 1,698 1,692 1,672
Advertising 1,062 1,102 1,086
Federal deposit insurance premium 235 258 765
Amortization of intangibles 848 847 850
Distributions on preferred capital securities 194 — —
General and administrative 4,265 3,782 4,260
Total non-interest expense 25,934 24,678 24,556
Income before income tax expense 36,772 34,067 35,807
Income tax expense 11,461 11,099 12,155
Net income $ 25,311 $ 22,968 $ 23,652
Basic earnings per share $0.84 $0.69 $0.60
Diluted earnings per share $0.82 $0.68 $0.59
Weighted average shares outstanding—Basic 30,291,022 33,436,961 39,464,227
Weighted average shares outstanding—Diluted 30,975,799 33,755,431 40,207,600

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
=




Accumu-

lated
Other
Compre- Common Common Total
hensive Stock Stock Stock-
Common Paid-In Retained Income Acquired Acquired Treasury holders’
Stock Capital Earnings  (Loss) by ESOP by RRP Stock Equity
(Dollars in thousands) )
Balance at December 31, 1998 $431 $201,105 $112,601$ 2,498 $(13,073) S (79) $ (3,664) $299,819
Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year ended
December 31, 1999 — — 23,652 — —_ — — 23,652
Other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized holding losses arising during
the period (net of tax of $(10,882)) — — — (19,346) — — —  (19,346)
Reclassification adjustment for gains in
net income (net of tax of $(255)) — — — (454) — — — (454)
Total comprehensive income 3,852
Cash dividends declared ($0.37 per share) — — (14,392) — — — — (14,392)
Exercise of stock options — — (3,283) — — — 4,766 1,483
Tax benefit on stock options and awards — 72 — — — — — 72
Purchase and retirement of common stock — 299) — — — — — 299
Purchases of treasury stock — — —_ — — — (48,035)  (48,035)
Transfer of treasury stock to RRP — — 656) — —  (5,048) 5,704 —
Amortization of RRP — — —_ — — 1,260 — 1,260
ESOP expense — 7 — — 917 — — 820
Balance at December 31, 1999 431 200,781 117,922 (17,302) (12,156) (3,867) (41,229) 244,580
Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year ended
December 31, 2000 — — 22,968 — — — — 22,968
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized holding gains arising during
the period (net of tax of $4,749) — — — 8,184 —_ — _ 8,184
Reclassification adjustment for losses in
net income (net of tax of $314) — — — 584 — — — 584
Total comprehensive income 31,736
Cash dividends declared (30.24 per share) — — (8,072) — — — — (8,072)
Exercise of stock options — — (224) — — — 367 143
Tax benefit on stock options and awards — 690 — — — — — 690
Purchase and retirement of common stock (&) 278) — — — — — (279)
Purchases of treasury stock — —_ — — — — (48,646)  (48,646)
Amortization of RRP — — — — — 1,079 — 1,079
ESOP expense — 71 7 — 918 — — 932
Balance at December 31, 2000 430 201,264 132,537 (8,534) (11,238) (2,788)  (89,508) 222,163
Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year ended
December 31, 2001 — — 25,313 — —_ — —_ 25,311
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized holding gains arising during
the period (net of tax of $6,014) — —_ — 11,115 —_ — — 11,115
Reclassification adjustment for gains in
net income (net of tax of $(218)) — — — (403 _ — — (403)
Total comprehensive income 36,023
Cash dividends declared ($0.30 per share) — — (9,147 — — — — (9,147)
Exercise of stock options —_ — (238) —_ —_ —_— 1,164 926
Tax benefit on stock options and awards —_— 394 — —_ _ —_ —_ 394
Purchase and retirement of common stock —_— (119 — — — — _ (110
Purchases of treasury stock — —_— — — —_ — (22,227) (22,227)
Amortization of RRP — — — — — 878 — 878
ESOP expense — 310 — — 917 —_ — 1,227
Balance at December 31, 2001 $430 $201,858 $148,463 $ 2,178 $(10,321) $(1,910) $(110,571) $230,127

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries




P
i
oo

&

CO5E D STATEMENTS FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 25311 $ 22,968 $ 23,652
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation of premises and equipment 1,353 1,339 1,406
Amortization of excess of cost over fair value of assets acquired 848 847 850
ESOP expense 1,227 932 820
Amortization of RRP 878 1,079 1,260
Income on BOLI (791) — —_—
Provision for loan losses 650 1,441 1,650
Provision for losses on real estate owned 3 — 28
Net (gain) loss on sales of loans and securities (387 876 (684)
Loans originated for sale (51,968) (10,041 (7,259)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans available for sale 46,625 9,786 7,234
Net gain on sales of real estate owned (188) 14 &))
Net loss on sales of premises and equipment 102 — —
Net amortization of premiums and accretion
of discounts and deferred fees 3,194 387 (168)
Decrease (increase) in interest and dividends receivable 1,442 (1,203) 1,278
Tax benefit on stock options and awards 394 690 72
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 878 1,901 (5,173
(Increase) decrease in other assets (5,506) (1,391) 2,654
Net cash provided by operating activities 23,865 29,597 27,619

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales, calls and maturities of investment securities

available for sale 193,199 52,979 144,123
Proceeds from sales of mortgage-backed securities available for sale 214,637 194,330 240,788
Proceeds from sales of real estate owned 785 523 2,375
Purchases of investment securities available for sale (59,254) (66,684) (131,356)
Purchases of mortgage-backed securities available for sale (549,076) (153,921) (372,883)
Principal payments on mortgage-backed securities 146,924 91,839 203,929
Origination of loans (434,666) (319,149) (344,286)
Purchases of mortgage loans (19,099) (87,829) (57,459)
Principal repayments on loans 398,735 237,588 237,927
Purchase of FHLB-NY stock (898) (1,543) (5,248)
Purchase of BOLI (25,000) — —_
Purchases of premises and equipment (1,563) (928) (1,428)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 186 — —

Net cash used in investing activities (135,090) (52,795) (83,518)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Stock options exercised 926 143 1,483
Cash dividends paid (9,147) (13,844) (8,620)
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred capital securities 24,171 — —
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 95,928 53,612 (54,395)
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowed funds (25,000) (10,0000 25,000
Proceeds from borrowed funds 325,000 521,000 310,000
Repayment of borrowed funds (260,141 (427,045) (177,675)
Net increase in advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance 581 769 1,416
Purchases of treasury stock (22,227 (48,646) (48,035)
Purchase and retirement of common stock (110) 279 299
Net cash provided by financing activities 129,981 27,710 48,875
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,756 4,512 (7,024)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 35,119 30,607 37,631
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 53,875 $ 35,119 $ 30,607

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $ 75,543 $ 78,096 $ 63,251

Income taxes 16,377 11,360 15,332
Non cash investing and financing activities for the year:

Transfer of loans to real estate owned 385 300 1,415

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements,
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{1) SUMRIARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOURTING POLIGIES
The following is a description of the significant
accounting policies used in preparation of the accompa-
nying consolidated financial statements of First Sentinel
Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company™).

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are comprised
of the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, First Sentinel Capital Trust I, First Sentinel
Capital Trust I, First Savings Bank (the “Bank™), and the
Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, FSB Financial Corp.
and 1000 Woodbridge Center Drive, Inc. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been pre-
pared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management is required to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lia-
bilities as of the date of the balance sheet and revenues
and expenses for the period. Actual results could differ
significantly from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to
significant change in the near term relate to the determi-
nation of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of
real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in
satisfaction of loans. In connection with the determination
of the allowance for loan losses, management generally
obtains independent appraisals for significant properties.

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income is divided into net income and
other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive
income includes items recorded directly to equity, such as
unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale.
Comprehensive income is presented in the consolidated
statements of stockholders’ equity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
amounts due from depository institutions and federal
funds sold. Generally, federal funds sold are sold for a
one-day period.

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities

Management determines the appropriate classification
of investment and mortgage-backed securities as either
available for sale, held to maturity, or trading at the pur-
chase date. Securities available for sale include debt,
mortgage-backed and marketable equity securities that
are held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold
in response to changing market and interest rate condi-
tions. These securities are reported at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, included as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. Upon real-
ization, such gains and losses are included in earnings
using the specific identification method.

Trading account securities are adjusted to market value
through earnings. Gains and losses from adjusting trad-
ing account securities to market value and from the sale
of these securities are included in non-interest income.

Investment securities and mortgage-backed securities,
other than those designated as available for sale or trad-
ing, are carried at amortized historical cost and consist
of those securities for which there is a positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity. All securities are adjusted
for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts
using the level-yield method over the estimated lives of
the securities.

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York Stock

The Bank, as a member of the FHLB-NY, is required
to hold shares of capital stock in the FHLB-NY in an
amount equal to the greater of 1% of the Bank’s out-
standing balance of residential mortgage loans or 3% of
its outstanding advances from the FHLB-NY.

Loans Receivable, Net

Loans receivable, other than loans held for sale, are
stated at the unpaid principal balance, net of premiums,
unearned discounts, net deferred loan origination and
commitment fees, and the allowance for loan losses.

Loans are classified as non-accrual when they are past
due 90 days or more as to principal or interest, or where
reasonable doubt exists as to timely collectibility. If,
however, a loan meets the above criteria, but a current
appraisal of the property indicates that the total out-
standing balance is less than 55% of the appraised value
and the loan is in the process of collection, the loan is not
classified as non-accrual. At the time a loan is placed on
non-accrual status, previously accrued and uncollected
interest is reversed against interest income. Interest
received on non-accrual loans is generally credited to
interest income for the current period. If principal and




interest payments are brought contractually current and
future collectibility is reascnably assured, loans are
returned to accrual status. Discounts are accreted and
premiums amortized to income using the level-yield
method over the estimated lives of the loans. Loan fees
and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred, and
the net fee or cost is recognized in interest income using
the level-yield method over the contractual life of the
individual loans, adjusted for actual prepayments.

The Company has defined the population of impaired
loans to be all non-accrual commercial real estate, multi-
family and construction loans. Impaired loans are indi-
vidually assessed to determine that the loan’s carrying
value is not in excess of the fair value of the collateral
or the present value of the loan’s expected future cash
flows. Smaller balance homogeneous loans that are col-
lectively evaluated for impairment, such as residential
mortgage loans and consumer loans, are specifically
excluded from the impaired loan portfolio. Income
recognition policies for impaired loans are the same as
non-accrual loans.

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or
market using the aggregate method. Valuation adjust-
ments, if applicable, are reflected in current operations.
Gains and losses on sales are recorded using the specific
identification method. Management determines the appro-
priate classification of loans as either held to maturity or
held for sale at origination, in conjunction with the
Company’s overall asset/liability management strategy.

The majority of the Company’s loans are secured by
real estate in the State of New Jersey. Accordingly, the
collectibility of a substantial portion of the carrying
value of the Company’s loan portfolio and real estate
owned is susceptible to changes in market conditions.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is based on manage-
ment’s evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance,
including an assessment of known and inherent risks in
the portfolio, review of individual loans for adverse sit-
vations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay,
the estimated value of any underlying collateral and
consideration of current economic conditions.

Additions to the allowance arise from charges to
operations through the provision for loan losses or from
the recovery of amounts previously charged off. The
allowance is reduced by loan charge-offs.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses
is adequate. While management uses available informa-
tion to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the
allowance may be necessary based on changes in eco-
nomic conditions in the Company’s market area. In
addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part
of their examination process, periodically review the
Company’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies
may require the Company to recognize additions to the
allowance based on their judgments about information
available to them at the time of their examination.

Real Estate Owned, Net

Real estate owned is recorded at the fair value at the
date of acquisition, with a charge to the allowance for
loan losses for any excess of cost over fair value.
Subsequently, real estate owned is carried at the lower
of cost or fair value, as determined by current
appraisals, less estimated selling costs. Certain costs
incurred in preparing properties for sale are capitalized,
while expenses of holding foreclosed properties are
charged to operations as incurred.

Excess of Cost Over Fair Value of Net Assets Acquired

The excess of cost over fair value of net assets acquired
from the acquisition of deposits is amortized to expense
over the expected life of the acquired deposit base (7 to
15 vyears) using the straight-line method. Management
periodically reviews the potential impairment of the core
deposit intangible asset on a non-discounted cash flow
basis to assess recoverability. If the estimated future
cash flows are projected to be less than the carrying
amount, an impairment write-down, representing the
carrying amount of the intangible asset which exceeds
the present value of the estimated expected future cash
flows, would be recorded as a period expense.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment, including leasehold
improvements, are stated at cost, less accumulated
amortization and depreciation. Depreciation and amor-
tization are computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives, ranging from three years
to forty years depending on the asset or lease. Repair
and maintenance items are expensed and improvements
are capitalized. Upon retirement or sale, any gain or loss
is recorded to operations.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes according to
the asset and liability method. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the enacted tax rates applicable to taxable income
for the vears in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates
is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date.

Employee Benefit Plans

Pension plan costs, based on actuarial computation
of current and future benefits for employees, are
charged to expense and are funded based on the max-
imum amount that can be deducted for Federal income
taX purposes.

The Company accrues the expected cost of providing
health care and other benefits to employees subsequent
to their retirement during the estimated service periods
of the employees.

The Company applies the “intrinsic value-based
method” as described in Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for
its stock-based compensation. The Company has provided
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements the
pro forma disclosures as if the Company had adopted
the fair value method of accounting for the issuance of
stock options. Stock awarded to employees under the
Company’s Recognition and Retention plan is expensed
by the Company over the awards’ vesting period based
upon the fair market value of the stock on the date of
the grant. Stock earned under the Bank’s ESOP plan is
expensed at the then current fair market value as shares
are committed to be released.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net
income by the daily average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
share is computed similarly to basic earnings per share
except that the denominator is increased to include the
number of additional common shares that would have
been outstanding if all potential dilutive common shares
were issued utilizing the treasury stock method. All share
amounts exclude unallocated shares held by the ESOP.

ﬁ@ First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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(Dollars in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
$25,311 $22,968  $23,652

Net income

Basic weighted average
common shares outstanding
Plus:
Dilutive stock options
Dilutive awards

30,291,022 33,436,961 39,464,227

611,853
72,924

286,164
32,306

384,069
359,304

Diluted weighted average
common shares outstanding 36,975,799 33,755,431 40,207,600

Net income per common share:

Basic $0.84 $0.69 $0.60
Diluted 0.82 0.68 0.59
Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2000
and 1999 amounts to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(2) RVESTHMENT SECURITIES
A summary of investment securities at December 31,
is as follows (in thousands):

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized unrealized unrealized market
2001 cost gains losses value
Investment Securities
Available For Szale
U.S. Government and
Agency obligations  $ 26,999 $ 168 $ (153) $ 27,014
State and
political obligations 14,029 146 (846) 14,029
Corporate obligations 60,330 1,414 2,387 59,357
Equity securities 8,051 85 (548) 7,588
Total investment
securities available
for sale $109,409 $1,813  $(3,234) $107,988
Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized unrealized unrealized market
2000 cost gains losses value
Investment Securities
Available For Sale
U.S. Government and
Agency obligations  $151,753 $106 $(2,710) $149,149
State and
political obligations 12,813 4 B66) 12451
Corporate obligations 67,267 356 (4,743) 62,880
Equity securities 10,817 8 (335) 10,490
Total investment
securities available
for sale $242,650 $474 $(8,154) $234,970

The cost and estimated fair value of debt investment
securities at December 31, 2001, by contractual maturity,
are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from
contractual maturities because issuers may have the
right to call or repay obligations at par value without
prepayment penalties.




Estimated
Amortized market
cost value

Investment Securities Available For Sale

Due in:

Less than one year $ 2507 § 2,553
One to five years 37,202 38,254
Five to ten years 31,697 31,888
Greater than ten years 29,952 27,705
$101,358 $100,400

The realized gross gains and losses from sales are
as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Gross realized gains $1,061 $ 301 $ 247
Gross realized losses (696) (729 (209

$ 365 $(428) $ 38

Investment securities with an amortized cost of $21.0
million at December 31, 2001, are pledged as collateral
for other borrowings. Pursuant to a collateral agreement
with the FHLB-NY, all otherwise unpledged, qualifying
investment securities, including those available for
sale, are pledged to secure advances from the FHLB-NY
(see Note 8).

{S) MOCRTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES
A summary of mortgage-backed securities at
December 31, is as follows (in thousands):

Collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs™) issued
by FHLMC, FNMA, GNMA and private interests amounted
to $58.2 million, $33.1 million, $4.6 million and $41.2
million, respeciively, at December 31, 2001, and $105.0
million, $23.5 million, $6.3 million and $62.6 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2000. The privately-issued
CMOs have generally been underwritten by large invest-
ment banking firms, with the timely payment of principal
and interest on these securities supported (credit
enhanced) in varying degrees by either insurance issued
by a financial guarantee insurer, letters of credit or sub-
ordination techniques. Substantially all such securities
are “AAA” rated by one or more of the nationally rec-
ognized securities rating agencies. The privately-issued
CMOs are subject to certain credit-related risks normally
not associated with U.S. Government Agency CMOs.
Among such risks is the limited loss protection generally
provided by the various forms of credit enhancements,
as losses in excess of certain levels are not protected.
Furthermore, the credit enhancement itself is subject to
the credit worthiness of the enhancer. Thus, in the event
a credit enhancer does not fulfill its obligations, the
CMO holder could be subject to risk of loss similar to a
purchaser of a whole loan pool. Management believes
that the credit enhancements are adequate to protect the
Company from losses and, therefore, has not provided
an allowance for losses on its privately-issued CMOs.

The realized gross gains and losses from sales are as
follows (in thousands):

Gross Gross Estimated Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Amortized unrealized unrealized market Gross realized gains $ 778 $ 558 $1,387
2001 cost gains losses value Gross realized losses (523) (1,028) (716)
Mortgage-Backed $ 255 $ 4700  $ 671
Securities Available
For Sale
FHLMC $300358  $3.596  $ (193) $303,761 Mortgage-backed securities with an amortized cost of
GNMA 45,257 1,002 — 46,259 $678,000 at December 31, 2001, were pledged as collat-
FNMA 154,686 1,103 (170) 155,619 eral to secure deposits held for municipalities within the
Collateralized State of New Jersey. Morigage-backed securities with an
mortgage obfigations 137,689 446 (1,058) 137,077 amortized cost of $379.7 million at December 31, 2001,
Total mortgage-backed ‘ were pledged as collateral for other borrowings.
securities available .
for sale $637,000 86,147  $(1,421) $642,716 Pursuant to a collateral agreement with the FHLB-NY, all
otherwise unpledged, qualifying mortgage-backed
Gross Gross Estimated securities are pledged to secure advances from the
Amortized unrealized unrealized — market FHLB-NY (see Note 8). The contractual maturities of
2000 cost gains losses value mortgage-backed securities generally exceed ten years,
Mortgage-Backed however the effective lives are expected to be shorter
iecusrif‘ies Available due to prepayments of the underlying mortgages.
or daie
FHLMC $161,038 $388 $ (837) $160,589
GNMA 29,473 228 On 29,610
FNMA 60,269 29 ©17) 59,381
Collateralized
mortgage obligations 201,765 14 (4,337) 197 442
Total mortgage-backed
securities available
for sale $452,545 $659 $(6,182) $447,022




{£) LOANS RECEIVABLE, IPEY _
A summary of loans receivable at December 31, is as
follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Loans Receivable
Real estate mortgages:
One-to-four family $ 857,973 § 879,578
Multi-family and commercial 191,202 144,151
Home equity 112,958 114,152
1,162,133 1,137,881
Real estate construction 136,719 60,452
Consumer 21,347 16,121
Total loans receivable 1,320,199 1,214,454
Loans in process (65,129) (19,161)
Net unamortized premium and
deferred expenses 641 1,850
Allowance for loan. losses (12,932) (12,341)

(77,420 (29,652)
$1,242,779  $1,184,802

Loans receivable, net

Loans receivable included loans heid for sale totaling
$5.5 million and $277,000 at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

The Company serviced loans for others in the amount
of $96.1 million, $75.8 million and $81.9 million at
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Related
servicing income earned on loans serviced for others
totaled $193,000, $177,000 and $202,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Loans in the amount of $1.7 million and $3.3 million
were outstanding to directors and executive officers of
the Bank at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
During 2001, new extensions of credit totaled
$687,000 while repayments by directors and executive
officers of the Bank totaled $2.3 million. The loans
consist primarily of loans secured by mortgages on
residential properties.

The Company has pledged, under a blanket assign-
ment, its unpledged and qualifying mortgage portfolio
to secure advances from the FHLB-NY (see Note 8).

A summary of non-performing assets at December 31,
is as follows (in thousands):

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the impaired loan
portfolio totaled $291,000 and $170,000, respectively, for
which general and specific allocations to the allowance
for loan losses of $46,000 and $17,000 were identified at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The average
balance of impaired loans during 2001, 2000 and 1999
was $195,000, $195,000 and $222,000, respectively.

If interest income on non-accrual and impaired loans
had been current in accordance with their original terms,
approximately $130,000, $193,000 and $197,000 of interest
income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively, would have been recorded. Interest
income recognized on non-accrual and impaired loans
totaled $103,000, $132,000 and $108,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. At
December 31, 2001, there were no commitments to lend
additional funds to borrowers whose loans are classified
as non-performing.

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the
years ended December 31, is as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Balance at beginning of year $12,341 $11,004 $ 9,505
Provision charged to operations 650 1,441 1,650
12,991 12,445 11,155

Charge-offs TV (104 asn
Recoveries 12 — —_
Balance at end of year $12,932 $12,341 $11,004

(5} IRTEREST AND DIVIBENDS RECEVABLE
A summary of interest and dividends receivable at
December 31, is as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000

Loans $ 5,696 $ 6,351
Investment securities 1,663 3,761
Mortgage-backed securities 4,680 3,369
Interest and dividends receivable $12,039 $13,481

(@) PRERISES ARD EQUIRPKIERY, NET
Premises and equipment at December 31, are summarized
as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000

Land $ 3870 $ 3870

2002 2000 Buildings and improvements 13,832 14,380

Non-accrual loans $1,787 $2,349 Leasehold improvements 1,285 1,281

Loans 90 days or more Furnishings, equipment and automobiles 9,006 8,424

delinquent and still accruing 62 40 Construction in progress 1,085 179

Total non-performing loans 1,84 2,389 Total 29,078 28,134

Real estate own};d & 859 Accumulated depreciation and amortization (13,064} (12,042)

(included in Other assets) 42 257 Premises and equipment, net $ 16,014  $ 16,092
Total non-performing assets $1,891 $2,646
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(7} DEPOSITS

Deposits at December 31, are summarized as follows

(dollars in thousands):

2001

2000

Interest Weighted
average

rate

Interest Weighted
rate  average

Amount range rate Amount range rate
Non-interest-
bearing
demand $§ 57,350 —% —% $ 51,739 —% —%
NOW and
money
market 427,008 1.02—2.26 1.93 358,961 1.02—3.18 2.63
Savings 176,559 1.74—3.23 2.21 159,812 2.15--5.16 2.32
Certificates
of deposit 654,347 1.74—7.72 416 648,824 2.96—7.72 5.72
$1,315,264 0—7.72%  2.99% $1,219336 0—7.72%  4.12%

The scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit at
December 31, 2001, are as follows (in thousands):

One year or less $527,273
After one to two years 63,827
After two to three years 23,462
After three to four years 12,407
After four to five years 11,047
After five years 16,331

$654,347

Included in deposits at December 31, 2001 and 2000, are

The Company has entered into FHLB-NY advances
that have call features that may be exercised by the
FHLB-NY, at par, at predetermined dates. Such advances
totaled $100.0 million and $30.0 million at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The maximum amount of
FHLB-NY advances outstanding at any month-end dur-
ing the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 was
$165.8 million and $140.2 million, respectively. The
average amount of FHLB-NY advances outstanding dur- -
ing the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 was
$128.5 million and $99.1 million, respectively. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, $5.0 million of FHLB-NY
advances had adjustable rates.

Advances from the FHLB-NY are secured by pledges
of FHLB-NY stock of $20.5 millicn and $19.6 million at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and a blan-
ket assignment of the Company’s unpledged, qualifying
mortgage loans, mortgage-backed securities and invest-
ment securities. Such loans and securities remain under
the control of the Company.

The Company has an available overnight line of credit
with the FHLB-NY for a maximum of $50.0 million at
December 31, 2001.

Other Borrowings
The following is a summary of other borrowings at
December 31, (dollars in thousands):

$200.3 million and $155.6 million of deposits of $100,000
and over, and $236,000 and $444,000, respectively, of
accrued interest pavable on deposits.

{8) BORROWED FURBDS

Federal Home Loan Bank-New York Advances
Advances from the FHLB-NY at December 31, are
summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

2001 2000

Weighted Weighted

average average

interest interest

Maturity Amount rate Amount rate
2001 $ — —2% $25,000 6.64%

2002 25,000 2.03 5,000 6.88

2003 15,080 5.68 15,000 5.68

2005 45,000 5.15 25,000 5.85

2006 35,000 4.68 — —

2007 5,814 7.32 5,955 7.32

2009 5,000 5.52 5,000 5.52

2011 35,000 5.37 — —
$165,814 4.76%  $80,955 6.21%

2001 2000
Weighted Weighted
average average
Contractual interest interest
Maturity Amount rate Amount rate
2001 $ —_ —L% $200,000 6.58%
2002 30,000 4.17 10,000 5.08
2003 40,000 4.35 — —
2004 105,000 5.35 60,000 5.82
2005 65,000 6.03 65,000 6.03
2006 35,000 4.89 — -
2008 35,000 5.09 35,000 5.09
2009 30,600 5.64 30,000 5.64
2010 25,0600 6.47 25,000 6.47
2011 15,000 5.07 — —
$380,000 5.29% $425,000 6.16%

The maximum amount of other borrowings outstanding
at any month-end during the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000 was $425.0 million and $440.0 million,
respectively. The average amount of other borrowings
outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2000 was $367.2 million and $404.3 million, respec-
tively. Securities underlying other borrowings included
mortgage-backed and investment securities, which had
an amortized cost of $400.7 million and $456.6 million,
with market values of $405.3 million and $451.5 million
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at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The secu-
rities underlying the other borrowing agreements are
under the Company’s control. At December 31, 2001
and 2000, $295.0 million and $215.0 million, respectively,
of other borrowings are callable at par, at defined dates
and at the lender’s discretion prior to the contractual
maturity of the borrowings.

@) REGULATORY RIATTERS

Subject to applicable law, the Board of Directors of
the Bank may provide for the payment of dividends.
New Jersey law provides that no dividend may be paid
unless, after the payment of such dividend, the capital
stock of the Bank will not be impaired and either the
Bank will have a statutory surplus of not less than 50%
of its capital stock or the payment of such dividend will
not reduce the statutory surplus of the Bank.

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal and state
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum require-
ments can initiate certain mandatory and possibly addi-
tional discretionary actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the
Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting prac-
tices. The Bank's capital amounts and classification are
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk weightings and other factors.

The prompt corrective action regulations define
specific capital categories based on an institution’s
capital ratios. The capital categories, in declining
order, are “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,”
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized,”
and “critically undercapitalized.”

Institutions categorized as “undercapitalized” or worse
are subject to certain restrictions on the payment of div-
idends and management fees, restrictions on asset
growth and executive compensation, and increased
supervisory monitoring, among other things. Other
restrictions may be imposed on the institution by the
regulatory agencies, including requirements to raise
additional capital, sell assets, or sell the entire institu-
tion. Once an institution becomes “critically undercapi-
talized” it must generally be placed in receivership or
conservatorship within 90 days. An institution is deemed
to be “critically undercapitalized” if it has a tangible
equity ratio, as defined, of 2% or less.
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To be considered “well capitalized,” an institution must
generally have a leverage ratio (Tier 1 capital to average
total assets), as defined, of at least 5.0%; a Tier 1 risk-
based capital ratio, as defined, of at least 6.0%; and a
total risk-based capital ratio, as defined, of at least 10.0%.

Management believes that, as of December 31, 2001,
the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to
which it was subject. Further, the most recent FDIC noti-
fication categorized the Bank as a well capitalized insti-
tution under the prompt corrective action regulations.
There have been no conditions or events since that noti-
fication that management believes have changed the
Bank’s capital classification.

The following is a summary of the Bank’s actual
capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2001
compared to the FDIC minimum capital adequacy
requirements and the FDIC requirements for classification
as a “well capitalized” institution (dollars in thousands):

FDIC Requirements

Minimum capital For classification

Bank actual adequacy as well capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Diecember 31, 2002
Leverage (Tier 1)

capital $189,250 9.09% $83,297 4.00% $104,121 5.00%
Risk-based capital:

Tier 1 189,250 17.48 43,312 4.00 64,968 6.60

Total 202,182 18.67 86,624 8.00 108,280 10.00

December 31, 2000
Leverage (Tier 1)

capital $180,322  9.36% $77,025 4.00% $ 96,281 5.00%
Risk-based capital:

Tier 1 180,322 17.91 40,273 4.00 60,409 6.00

Total 192,663 19.14 80,545 8.00 100,682 10.00

(10} INGOME TAXES

Income tax expense applicable to income for the
years ended December 31, consists of the following
(in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Federal:
Current $12,667 $11.388 $13,043
Deferred (1,271) (514) 974
11,396 10,874 12,069
State:
Current 65 225 17
Deferred —_ —_ 69
65 225 86
$11,461 $11,099 $12,155




A reconciliation between the effective income tax
expense and the amount computed by multiplying the
applicable statutory federal income tax rate for the years
ended December 31, is as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Income before income taxes $36,772 $34,067 $35,807
Applicable statutory
federal tax rate 35% 35% 35%
Computed “expected” federal
income tax expense, 12,870 11,923 12,532

Increase (decrease) in federal
income tax expense
resulting from:
State income taxes,
net of federal benefit 42 146 56

Income on BOLI Q@m™ — —
Other items, net ,174) (970) (433)
$11,461 $11,099 $12,155

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise
to a significant portion of deferred tax assets and liabilities
at December 31, are as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for {oan losses—book $4,526  $ 4,319
Unrealized loss on securities
available for sale —_ 4,669
Postretirement benefits 640 552
Tax depreciation less than
book depreciation 183 132
Excess pension expense 542 624
Stock awards 154 154
Excess cost over fair value
of net assets acquired 471 468
Other 501 130
Total deferred tax assets 7,017 11,048

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Provision for loan losses—tax 291 581
Unrealized gain on securities

available for sale - 1127 —
Deferred points 450 742
Other 60 111
Total deferred tax liabilities 1,928 1,434

Net deferred tax asset $5,089 $ 9,614

Retained earnings at December 31, 2001 and 2000
included approximately $18.1 million for which no pro-
vision for income tax has been made. This amount rep-
resented an allocation of income to bad debt deductions
for tax purposes only. Events that would result in taxation
of these reserves include failure to qualify as a bank for
tax purposes, distributions in complete or partial liquida-
tion, stock redemptions, excess distributions to share-
holders or a change in Federal tax law. At December 31,
2001 and 2000, the Company had an unrecognized tax
liability of $6.5 million with respect to this reserve.

Included in other comprehensive income is income
tax expense (benefit) attributable to net unrealized gains
(losses) on securities available for sale in the amounts of
$5.8 million, $5.1 million and $(11.1 million) for the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respec-
tively, In addition, income tax benefit of $394,000,
$690,000 and $72,000 was recognized in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively, related to the exercise or disqualifying
disposition of stock options and awards.

Management has determined that it is more likely than
not that it will realize the deferred tax assets based upon
the nature and timing of the items listed above. There
can be no assurances, however, that there will be no
significant differences in the future between taxable
income and pretax book income if circumstances
change. In order to fully realize the net deferred tax
asset, the Company will need to generate future taxable
income. Management has projected that the Company
will generate sufficient taxable income to utilize the net
deferred tax asset; however, there can be no assurance
that such levels of taxable income will be generated.

(4 1) EMPLOVEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company is a participant in the Financial
Institutions Retirement Fund, a multi-employer defined
benefit plan. All employees who attain the age of 21 years
and complete one year of service are eligible to participate
in this plan. Retirement benefits are based upon a formula
utilizing years of service and average compensation, as
defined. Participants are vested 100% upon the comple-
tion of five years of service. Pension expense (benefit)
was $384,000, $160,000 and $(118,000) for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Financial Institutions Retirement Fund does not segre-
gate its assets, liabilities or costs by participating
employer. Therefore, disclosure of the accumulated
benefit obligations, plan assets and the components of
annual pension expense attributable to the Company
cannot be made.

The Company has a Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan (“SERP”), which provides post-employment supple-
mental retirement benefits to certain officers of the
Company. The SERP is a non-qualified employee
benefit plan.

The Company has a non-pension postretirement bene-
fit plan (“Other Benefits”), which provides certain health-
care benefits to eligible employees. The plan is unfunded
as of December 31, 2001, and the obligation is included in
Other liabilities as an accrued postretirement benefit cost.
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The following table shows the change in benefit obli-
gation, the funded status for the SERP and Other Benefits,
and accrued cost at December 31, (in thousands):

SERP Other Benefits

2001 2000 2001 2000

Benefit obligation at
beginning of year $ 1,328 $ 1,061 $ 1,521 $1,743
Service cost 117 104 61 63
Interest cost 100 85 123 99
Actuarial loss (gain) 95 78 3} (348)
Benefits paid — — (41) (36

Benefit obligation at

the end of the year  § 1,640 §$ 1,328 $ 1,661 $1521

Funded status $(L1,640) $(1,328) $(1,661) $(1,521D)
Unrecognized net

actuarial loss (gain) 237 147 64> (61)
$(1,403) 5(1,18D) $(1,725) $(1,582)

Accrued benefit cost

Weighted average
assumptions as
of December 31:

Discount rate

Rate of compensation
increase

7.25% 7.50% 7.25%  7.50%

5.00% 5.00% 5.00%  5.00%

Net periodic cost at December 31, includes the following
components (in thousands):

SERP Other Benefits
2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

Service cost $117 $104 S 92 $ 61 $63 $81
Interest cost 100 85 73 123 99 115
Amortization

of net

actuarial

loss (gain) — — 12 — )] 26
Net periodic

cost $217  $189  $177 $184  $138  $222

For measurement purposes, a five percent annual rate
of increase in the per capita cost of covered healthcare
benefits was assumed for 2001 and all future vears.
Assumed healthcare trend rates have a significant effect on
the amounts reported for the healthcare plans. A one per-
centage point change in the assumed healthcare cost trend
rates would have the following effects (in thousands):

One Percentage Point

Increase Decrease

Effect on total of service and
interest cost components $ 44 $ 29
Effect on Other benefits obligation 316 Q47

The Company also maintains an incentive savings
plan for eligible employees. Employees may make con-
tributions to the plan of 2% to 15% of their compensa-
tion. For the first 6% of the employee’s contribution, the
Company contributes 25% of that amount to the
employee’s account. At the end of the plan year, the
Company may make an additional contribution to the
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plan. The contributions under this plan were $94,000,
$89,000 and $88,000 for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Recognition and Retention Plan

The Company maintains a recognition and retention
Plan (“RRP”) for the benefit of directors, officers and key
employees. In 1998, the Board of Directors and stock-
holders approved the granting of 662,014 shares as
awards under the 1998 Stock-Based Incentive Plan
(¥1998 Plan”). As of December 31, 2001, the Company
had granted 641,799 shares under the 1998 Plan.

RRP awards are granted in the form of shares of common
stock held by the RRP. Awards granted in 1998 vest over
a five-year period at a rate of 20% per year, commencing
one year from the date of the award grant.

Amortization of the RRP was $878,000, $1.1 million
and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999. Amortization in 2000 and 1999
included $151,000 and $202,000, respectively, in accel-

“erated expense due to the death of two of the

Company’s directors.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The Company maintains an ESOP for eligible employees
who have completed a twelve-month period of employ-
ment with the Company. ESOP shares were purchased
in each of the Company’s public offerings. Funds for the

purchase of additional shares were borrowed from the

Bank’s parent, First Sentinel Bancorp. Shares purchased
by the ESOP are held by a trustee for allocation among
participants as the loan is repaid. The Company, at its
discretion, contributes funds, in cash, to pay principal
and interest on the ESOP loan. The number of shares of
common stock released each year is proportional to the
amount of principal and interest paid on the ESOP loan
for the year. Dividends paid on unallocated ESOP shares
are used to repay the loan. Unallocated ESOP shares are
not considered outstanding for purposes of calculating
earnings per share. At December 31, 2001, there were
1,135,346 unallocated ESOP shares with a. market value
of $14.2 million.

The Company recognizes compensation expense
based on the fair value of shares committed to be
released. Compensation expense recognized for 2001,

© 2000 and 1999 amounted to $1.2 million, $932,000 and

$820,000, respectively. The Company allocated 100,920
shares per year during 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Stock Option Plans

The Company maintains stock option plans (the
“Plans™) for the benefit of directors, officers, and other
key employees of the Company. Options granted under
the Plans are exercisable over a period not to exceed
ten years from the date of grant. The following table
summarizes the options granted and exercised under the
Plans during the periods indicated and their respective
weighted average exercise price:




2001 2000 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number average Number  average Number average
of  exercise of  exercise of  exercise
shares price shares price shares price
Qutstanding
at beginning
of peded 2,285,844 $7.65 2297996 $755 2,840,284 $6.55
Granted —_ — 31,437 9.00 — —_
Forfeited (86,350) 200 (1000 9.00 — —
Exercised (131,981) 701 (42589 335 (542288 2.70
Cutstanding
atend of
period 2,067,513 $7.63 2285844 $7.65  2,267.99 $7.55
Options
exercisable
at yearend 1,375,895 1,393,004 1,074,196

The following table summarizes information about the
stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

average Weighted Number Weighted

Range of Number remaining average of shares  average
exercise of shares contractual exercise exercisable at  exercise
prices outstanding life in years price  period end price
$2.3413-3.4538 122,100 3.2 $3.19 122,100 $3.19
3.5866-4.5165 381,240 4.8 3.98 381,240 3.98

6.6419-9.0000 1,564,173 7.0 8.87 872,555 8.77

$2.3413-9.0000 2,067,513 64 $7.63 1,375,895  $6.95

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 in
accounting for the Plans.  Consistent with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, if
compensation cost for the Plans was accounted for
under the fair value method, the Company’s net income
and earnings per share would have been reduced to the
pro forma amounts indicated below (in thousands,
except per share data):

2001 2000 1999
Net Income:
As reported $25,311 $22,968 $23,652 ,
Pro forma 24,569 22,229 22,920
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share $0.84 $0.69 $0.60
Diluted earnings per share 0.82 0.68 0.59
Pro forma basic
earnings per share 0.81 0.66 0.58
Pro forma diluted
earnings per share 0.79 0.66 0.57
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during year $§ — $1.19 $ —

The fair value of stock options granted by the Company
was estimated through the use of the Black-Scholes
option pricing model that takes into account the follow-
ing factors as of the grant dates: the exercise price and
expected life of the option, the market price of the
underlying stock at the grant date and its expected
volatility, and the risk-free interest rate for the expected

term of the option. In deriving the fair value of a stock
option, the stock price at the grant date is reduced by
the value of the dividends to be paid during the life of
the option. The following assumptions were used for
grants in 2000: dividend vyield of 2.50%; an expected
volatility of 25%, and a risk-free interest rate of 6.20%.
There were no options granted in 2001 or 1999.

(12) PREFERRED CARITAL SECURITIES

In November 2001, the Company issued $25.0 million
of Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable pre-
ferred capital securities through special purpose busi-
ness trusts. Of the $25.0 million of preferred capital
securities sold, $12.5 million have a floating rate of inter-
est, which resets semi-annually, equal to 6-month LIBOR
plus 3.75%. The floating rate, however, may not exceed
11.0% for the first five years. The remaining $12.5 mil-
lion of preferred capital securities have a fixed interest
rate of 9.95%. Distributions on the preferred capital
securities are payable semi-annually. The stated maturity
of the preferred capital securities is December 8, 2031,
with early redemption permitted on any June 8 or
December 8 on or after December 8, 2000, at par.

(48) CORMITHIENTS AND CONTINGENGCIES
COMMITMENTS

Financial Transactions with Off-Balance-Sheet
Risk and Concentrations of Credit
The Company, in the normal course of conducting its
business, extends credit to meet the financing needs of
its customers through commitments and letters of credit.
The following commitments and contingent liabili-
ties existed at December 31, which are not reflected in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements
(in thousands):

2001 2000

Origination of mortgage loans:
Fixed rate $70,946 $ 9,899
Variable rate 29,602 88,341
Purchase of mortgage loans—variable rate 3,193 1,238
Undisbursed home equity credit lines 56,540 50,427
Undisbursed construction credit lines 65,129 19,161
Undisbursed consumer lines of credit 9,480 10,918

Participations in Thrift Institutions
Community Investment Corp. of NJ 500 500
Standby letters of credit 2,253 2,296

These instruments involve elements of credit and
interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in
the consolidated financial statements. The.Company
uses the same credit policies and collateral requirements
in making commitments and conditional obligations as
it does for on-balance-sheet loans. Commitments gener-
ally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since the
commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the
total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent
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future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each
customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The
amount of collateral obtained is based on management’s
credit evaluation of the borrower.

The Company grants one-to-four family first mortgage
real estate loans, multi-family, construction loans, and
nonresidential first mortgage real estate loans to bor-
rowers throughout New Jersey. Its borrowers’ abilities to
repay their obligations are dependent upon various fac-
tors, including the borrowers’ income and net worth,
cash flows generated by the underlying collateral, value
of the underlying collateral and priority of the
Company's lien on the property. Such factors are
dependent upon various economic conditions and indi-
vidual circumstances beyond the Company’s control; the
Company is therefore subject to risk of loss. The
Company believes its lending policies and procedures
adequately minimize the potential exposure to such
risks and that adequate provisions for loan losses are
provided for all known and inherent risks. Collateral
and/or guarantees are required for virtually all loans.

Lease Obligations

At December 31, 2001, the Company was obligated
under noncancellable operating leases for premises
and equipment. Rental expense under these leases
aggregated approximately $502,000, $523,000 and
$525,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively.

The projected minimum rental commitments as of
December 31, 2001, are as follows (in thousands):

2002 § 439
2003 306
2004 257
2005 157
2006 59
Thereafter —

$1,218
CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a defendant in certain claims and
legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
Management is of the opinion that the ultimate disposi-
tion of these matters will not have a material adverse
+ effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition
or results of operations.

Stockholder Rights Agreement

On December 19, 2001 the Company adopted a
Stockholder Rights Agreement (“Rights Agreement”).and
declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase
right (“Right”) for each outstanding share of the
Company’s common stock. The dividend is payable on
January 1, 2002, 1o stockholders of record on that date.
Each Right, initially, is not exercisable and transfers only
with the Company’s common stock. Upon the public
announcement that a person or group of persons has
acquired or intends to acquire 12% or more of the
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Company’s common stock, the Rights become exercis-
able, entitling holders to purchase one one-hundredth
interest in a share of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock of the Company, at an exercise price of
$37.00. The Rights are scheduled to expire on January 1,
2012 and may be redeemed by the Company at a price
of $0.01 per Right.

(14) RECERNT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCENERTS

On October 3, 2001, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,” which addresses financial accounting and
reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived
assets. While SFAS No. 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of,” it retains
many of the fundamental provisions of that Statement.
The Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. The initial adoption of SFAS No. 144
did not have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” which
addresses financial accounting and reporting for obliga-
tions associated with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs.
SFAS No. 143 requires an enterprise to record the fair
value of an asset retirement obligation as a liability in
the period in which it incurs a legal obligation associated
with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets. The
Company is required to adopt the provisions of SFAS
No. 143 for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002.
The Company does not anticipate that SFAS No. 143
will significantly impact the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

On July 20, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141,
“Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that
the purchase method of accounting be used for all busi-
ness combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, as well
as all purchase method business combinations completed
after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 also specifies criteria
which intangible assets acquired in a purchase method
business combination must meet to be recognized and
reported apart from goodwill. SFAS No. 142 will require
that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite use-
ful lives no longer be amortized, but instead be tested
for impairment at least annually in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 142. SFAS No. 142 will also
require that intangible assets with definite useful lives be
amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to
their estimated residual wvalues, and periodically
reviewed for impairment.

SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and any intangible
assets determined to have an indefinite useful life that are
acquired in a purchase business combination completed
after fune 30, 2001, will not be amortized but will contin-
ue to be evaluated for impairment in accordance with the




appropriate pre-SFAS No. 142 accounting literature.
Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in business com-
binations completed before july 1, 2001, will continue to
be amortized prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142.

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 141
in July 2001. The initial adoption of SFAS No. 141 had no
impact on the Company's consolidated financial state-
ments. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 142
effective January 1, 2002. The Company currently has no
recorded goodwill and the adoption of SFAS No. 142 did
not significantly impact the Company’s ‘accounting for
currently recorded intangible assets, primarily core
deposit intangibles.

{15} FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL IRSTRUNENTS

The following fair value estimates, methods and
assumptions were used to measure the fair value of each
class of financial instrument for which it is practical to
estimate that value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents ‘
For such short-term investments, the carrying amount
was considered to be a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Federal Home Loan Bank of NY Stock
Federal Home Loan Bank of NY stock is valued at cost.

Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities

For investment and mortgage-backed securities, fair
values were based on quoted market prices or dealer
quotes. If a quoted market price was not available, fair
values were estimated using quoted market prices for
similar securities.

Loans Receivable, Net

Fair values were estimated for portfolios of perform-
ing and non-performing loans with similar financial
characteristics. For certain analogous categories of loans,
such as residential mortgages, home equity loans, non-
residential mortgages, and consumer loans, fair value
was estimated using the quoted market prices for secu-
rities backed by similar loans, adjusted for differences in
loan characteristics. The fair value of other performing
loan types was estimated by discounting the future cash
flows using market discount rates that reflect the credit,
collateral, and interest rate risk inherent in the loan.

Deposits

The fair value of demand deposits, savings deposits
and money market accounts were the amounts payable
on demand at December 31, 2001 and 2000. The fair val-
ues of certificates of deposit were based on the discounted
value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate was
estimated utilizing the rate currently offered for deposits
of similar remaining maturities.

Borrowings

- For short-term borrowings, the carrying amount was
considered to be a reasonable estimate of fair value. For
long-term borrowings, the fair value was based upon
the discounted value of the cash flows. The discount
rates utilized were based on rates currently available
with similar terms and maturities.

Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments

For commitments to extend credit and letters of credit,
the fair value would approximate fees currently charged
to enter into similar agreements.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial
instruments at December 31, were as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Book Fair Book Fair
value value’ value value

Financial Assets:
Cash and

cash equivalents $ 53875 $% 353875 3 35119 § 35119
FHLB-NY stock 20,541 20,541 19,643 19,643
Investment securities

available for sale 107,988 107,988 234,970 234,970
Mortgage-backed

securities available .

for sale 642,716 642,716 447,022 447,022
Loans receivable, net 1,242,779 1,249,043 1,184,802 1,186,987
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits 1,315,264 1,323,208 1219336 1,220,475
Borrowed funds 545,814 561,551 505,955 507,218
Off-Balance-Sheet

 Instruments:

Loan commitments — 651 — 192
Standby letters of credit — 23 — 23
Limitations

The foregoing fair value estimates were made at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, based on pertinent market
data and relevant information on the financial instru-
ment. These estimates do not include any premium or
discount that could result from an offer to sell, at one
time, the Company’s entire holdings of a particular
financial instrument or category thereof. Since no mar-
ket exists for a substantial portion of the Company’s
financial instruments, fair value estimates were neces-
sarily based on judgments with respect to future expected
loss experience, current economic conditions, risk
assessments of various financial instruments involving a
myriad of individual borrowers, and other factors. Given
the innately subjective nature of these estimates, the
uncertainties surrounding them and the matters of sig-
nificant judgment that must be applied, these fair value
estimations cannot be calculated with precision.
Modifications in such assumptions could meaningfully
alter these estimates.
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Since these fair value approximations were made solely

for on- and off-balance-sheet financial instruments at .

December 31, 2001 and 2000, no attempt was made to
estimate the value of anticipated future business of the
value of nonfinancial statement assets and liabilities.
Other important elements which are not deemed to be
financial assets or liabilities include the value of the
Company’s retail branch delivery system, its existing
core deposit base, premises and equipment, and good-
will. Further, certain tax implications related to the real-
ization of the unrealized gains and losses could have a
substantial impact on these fair value estimates and have
not been incorporated into any of the estimates.

(16) CONDERSED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS—
PARENT CORIPANY
The condensed financial statements of First Sentinel
Bancorp (parent company only) are presented below:

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

December 31, 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Assets
Cash $ 16,920 $ 1,667
Due from subsidiaries 2,734 3,603
ESOP loan receivable 11,745 12,346
Investment in subsidiaries 196,086 180,447
Investiment securities available for sale 24,553 23,713
Other assets 1,112 1,543
Total assets $256,150  $223,319
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Junior subordinated deferrable
interest debentures $ 25,774 § —
Other liabilities 249 1,156
" Stockholders’ equity 230,127 222,163
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity §256,150  $223,319
Condensed Statements of Income
Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Income
Dividends from subsidiary $20,000 $ 37,000 $ 49,400
Interest and dividends
on securities 1,628 2,007 1,555
Net (loss) gain on sales )
of securities (118) 86 179
Total income 21,510 39,093 51,134
Expense
Other expense 1,030 703 1,343
Total expense 1,830 703 1,343
Income before taxes 20,480 38,390 49,791
Income taxes 1,474 878 543
Income before equity in
undistributed income
of subsidiaries 19,006 37,512 49,248
Equity in undistributed
income (dividends in
excess of earnings)
of subsidiaries 6,305 (14,544) €25,596)
Net income $25,311 $ 22968 $ 23652
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000

(In thousands)
Operating Activities
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net
income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
(Increase in undistributed
earnings) dividends
in excess of earnings

1999

$ 25,311 $ 22,968 §$ 23,652

of subsidiaries (6,305) 14,544 25,596
Net losses (gains) on sales
of investment securities
available for sale 118 (86) 179
Decrease (increase) -
in other assets 92 1,012 858
(Decrease) increase
in other liabilities (907 75 (678)
ESOP expense 1,227 932 820
Amortization of RRP 878 1,079 1,260
Net cash provided by
operating activities 20,414 40,524 51,329
Investing Activities
Purchase of
investment securities (15,688) (7,814 (20,407)
Proceeds from sales and
maturities of investment
securities available for sale 16,045 6,657 22,280
Decrease (increase) in
Due from subsidiaries 869 (1,303) (600)
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities 1,226 (2,460) 1,273
Financing Activities
Cash dividends paid 9,147y (13,844  (8,620)
Stock options exercised 926 143~ 1,483
Net proceeds from issuance
of junior subordinated
deferrable interest debentures 24,171 — —
Purchase of treasury stock (22,227) (48,646) (48,035)
Purchase and retirement
" of common stock aie 79 (299
Net cash used in financing activities (6,387) (62,626) (55,471)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 15,253  (24,562) (2,869
Cash at beginning of the year 1,667 26,229 29,098

Cash at end of year

$ 16,920 $ 1,667 § 26,229



{17) QUARTERLY FINANGIAL DATA (VNAUBITED)
The following table contains quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 (dollars in
thousands, except per share data):

First Second Third Fourth

Year Ended December 31, 2001 , ‘ quarter quarter quarter . quarter
Interest income ' $34,270 $33,302 $33,320 $32,693
Interest expense 19,825 18,482 18,758 17,619
Net interest income 14,445 14,820 14,562 15,074
Provision for loan losses 200 150 150 150
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 14,245 14,670 14,412 14,924
Non-interest income ‘ ' 1,003 : 1,021 1,379 1,052
Non-interest expense 6,540 6,509 6,267 6,618
Income before income tax expense ' 8,708 9,182 ‘ 9,524 9,358
Income tax expense 2,792 2,956 2,955 2,758
Net income $ 5,916 $ 6,226 $ 6,569 $ 6,600
Basic earnings per share $0.19 $0.20 $0.22 $0.22
Diluted earnings per share $0.19 $0.20 $0.21 $0.22
First Second Third Fourth

Year Ended December 31, 2000 quarter quarter quarter quarter
Interest income : $32.847 $34,173 $35,145 $34,624
Interest expense 18,229 19,343 20,848 20,452
Net interest income 14,618 14,830 14,297 14,172
Provision for loan losses 393 393 393 262
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 14,225 14,437 13,904 13,910
Non-interest income 738 701 70 760
Non-interest expense 6,331 6,253 5,795 6,299
Income before income tax expense 8,632 8,885 8,179 8,371
Income tax expense 2,896 3,089 2,538 2,576
Net income : $ 5736 $ 5,796 $ 5,641 $ 5,795
Basic earnings per share $0.16 $0.17 $0.17 $0.18
Diluted earnings per share $0.16 $0.17 $0.17 $0.18

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries




The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc.
and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits.in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan-
cial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. '

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

KPMe L

Short Hills, New Jersey
January 18, 2002

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries




Dividend Reinvestment Plan

First Sentinel offers its shareholders a convenient plan
to increase their investment in the Company. Shareholders
can elect to have their quarterly cash dividends automat-

ically reinvested in additional shares of common stock at

market price without any commissions or service charges.
In the alternative, shareholders can elect to have their
cash dividends automatically deposited in an account at
First Savings Bank. Shareholders may request information
about the plan and an enrollment card by contacting the
Company’s executive offices at 877-636-BANK.

Transfer Agent

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford, NJ 07016
800-368-5948

WWW.ITCO.COm

Market Makers

Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc.
1001 Nineteenth Street North
Arlington, VA 22209-1722

Janney Montgomery Scott, LLC
1801 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Ryan, Beck & Co.
220 South Orange Avenue
Livingston, NJ 07039

Sandler O'Neill & Parmefs, LP.
919 Third Avenue, 6th Floor
New York, NY 10022

Auditors

KPMG LLP

150 John F. Kennedy Parkway
Short Hills, NJ 07078

Counsel ,
Wilentz Goldman & Spitzer -
90 Woodbridge Center Drive
Woodbridge, NJ 07095

Thacher Proffitt & Wood
11 West 42nd Street
New York, NY 10036

Investor Relations

Ann C. Clancy, Senior Vice President
First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc.

1000 Woodbridge Center Drive
Woodbridge, NJ 07095

732-726-9700

Annual Meeting

First Sentinel’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be
held on Tuesday, May 21, 2002, at 10:00 a.m. at the
Sheraton at Woodbridge Place, 515 Route 1 South, Iselin,
New Jersey.

10-K Availability

Copies of First Sentinel’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001, are available free-of-charge to
shareholders upon written request to First Sentinel
Bancorp, Inc., 1000 Woodbridge Center Drive,
Woodbridge, New Jersey 07095; Attention: Bonnie Petz.
The 10-K is also available on the Company’s website at
www.firstsentinelbancorp.com.

Contacts

Persons seeking general or financial - information
about First Sentinel should contact Investor Relations
at 732-726-9700 ext. 5514 or visit the Company’s website
at www firstsentinelbancorp.com. Shareholders seeking
information regarding stock records, changing the name,
address or ownership of stock or reporting lost certifi-
cates should contact the Company’s transfer agent,
Registrar and Transfer Company, at 800-368-5948 or visit
their website at www.rtco.com to complete forms online.

Market Information for Common Stock

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. common stock trades on the
Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol “FSLA.”
Newspaper financial sections list the stock as FSLA or
FSentBc. At December 31, 2001, there were 2,828 holders
of record of First Sentinel’s common stock. The following
table sets forth the high and low bid prices per share of the

-Company’s common stock, as reported on the Nasdaq

National Market.

2001 2000
Dividends Dividends
High Low Paid High Low . Paid
Fourth quarter $13.26 $10.95 $.075  $1150  $8.69 $.060
Third quarter 1340 11.65 075 9.81 8.00 060
Second quarter 13.60 10.44 075 8.63 7.25 060
First quarter 11.50 9.88 075 8.25 7.09 210°

“Includes a special cash dividend of $0.15 paid in January 2000.

First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries




First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc.
Board of Directors

Philip T. Ruegger, Jr.
Chairman of the Board
Investor

Joseph Chadwick
President, Thomas and Chadwick/
Riverside Supply Company

George T. Hornyak, Jr.
Former President, Pulse Bancorp

Christopher Martin

Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

First Sentinel Bancorp

Keith H. McLaughlin
Retired President and

Chief Executive Officer
Raritan Bay Medical Center

John P. Mulkerin
President and Chief Executive Officer
First Sentinel Bancorp

Jeffries Shein
Principal, JGT Management Co., LLC

Walter K. Timpson
Owner, Walter K. Timpson Co.,
real estate & appraisal firm

All directors of First Sentinel Bancorp serve
as directors of First Savings Bank.

Executive Officers

John P. Mulkerin
President and Chief Executive Officer

Christopher Martin _
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Olfficer

Thomas M. Lyons :
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Ann C. Clancy
Corporate Secretary

@ First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

First Savings Bank
Principal Officers

Executive QOfficers
John P. Mulkerin
President and Chief Executive Officer

Christopher Martin
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

Richard Spengler
Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer

John F. Cerulo, Jr.
Senior Vice President—Relail Banking

Ann C. Clancy
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

Maryanne Guenther
Senior Vice President—Marketing

Thomas M. Lyons
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Karen I. Martino
Senior Vice President—Auditor

Richard St. George
Senior Vice President—Information Technology

Vice Presidents

Joanne L. Barbara John J. Harvey
Warren Buehler Thomas B. Konopacki
George Campbell Mary Marley-Reidy
Richard deGroot Patricia A. Parente
Joan C. Deyak Robert G. Russell, Jr.
Catherine D. Franzoni Stephanie Szatkowski

Barbara Gallop

Assistant Vice Presidents

Glenn Brooks Ellen Jorgensen
Patricia Evans Marianne Pugliese

Assistant Secretaries

Donna Acosta Karen LaSala
-Ingrid Andrade Kenia Lopez
Nicole Chenard Mary Ann Lovas
Susan Eberle Joseph Maguire
Ana Ferreira Mary Ann Minter
Denise Figueroa Maria Nasser
Wanda Ghigliotty Renee Parsons
Carol Hill . Joan Pressler
Roxanne Keegan Charlotte Puerari
Karen Kline Angeline Shapinski
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23 Offices

East Brunswick
213 Summerhill Road

Edison
980 Amboy Avenue
2100 Oak Tree Road
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Throughout Central New Jersey
Middletown Internet
1580 Route 35 South www.firstsavings.com
Milltown www firstsentinelbancorp.com

Fanwood
206 South Avenue

Fords
33 Lafayette Road

Hazlet
Route 35 & Bethany Road

Highland Park
301 Raritan Avenue

Hopelawn
101 New Brunswick Avenue

Iselin
1220 Green Street

Lawrenceville
1225 Brunswick Avenue

Metuchen
599 Middlesex Avenue

97 North Main Street

Monroe Township
Prospect Plains & Applegarth Roads
371 Spotswood-Englishtown Road

Old Bridge
Route 9 & Ticetown Road

Perth Amboy
339 State Street

Piscataway
100 Stelton Road

Somerset
780 Easton Avenue

South Amboy
Washington Avenue & Davis Lane

South River
6 Jackson Street

Woodbridge
325 Amboy Avenue
1000 Woodbridge Center Drive

Executive Offices
1000 Woodbridge Center Drive
Woodbridge

Loan-by-Phone
1-800-218-4266

Bank-by-Phone
1-732-726-9700

24-Hour Rate Information
1-877-636-BANK

Deposits FDIC insured

Equal Housing Lender

24-hour banking at all locations




First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc.
1000 Woodbridge Center Drive
Woodbridge, NJ 07095
732-726-9700
www firstsentinelbancorp.com




